SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 20-IS
INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

1. Check the appropriate box:
[ ]Preliminary Information Statement
[ x ] Definitive Information Statement

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc. (“PMIF” or the
“Fund”)

3. Philippines
Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

4. SEC lIdentification Number CS2005-17003

5. BIR Tax Identification Number 247-064-691-000

6. 17/F Philam Life Head Office, Net Lima Building,
5= Avenue corner 26" Street, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City 1634
Address of principal office Postal Code

7. Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (632) 8580-0900

8. Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

October 22, 2021 10:30 a.m. via Zoom

9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security holders
September 30, 2021

10. Proxy Solicitation
Name of Person filing the Statement/Solicitor: Mr. Roberto Martin S. Enrile
Address and Telephone No.: 19/F, BPl Buendia Center, Sen. Gil J. Puyat Ave., Makati City

(632) 8580-0900

11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding or Amount of Debt Outstanding
(as of 30 June 2021)

Common Shares 791,846,198
with PHPO0.01 par value per share

12. None of PMIF’s securities is listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange.



NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

Please be informed that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of PHILAM MANAGED INCOME FUND, INC.
(the “Company”) will be conducted virtually via Zoom on October 22, 2021 at 10:30am

The agenda for the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting shall be as follows:
1. Callto Order
2. Certification of Notice
3. Determination and Declaration of Quorum
4. Reading and approval of the minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on 29 October 2020

5. Presentation and approval of the 2020 Audited Financial Statements and other reports of the Fund
Manager

6. Approval and confirmation of all acts of the Board of Directors and of Management for 2020
7. Election of Directors for 2021

8. Confirmation of BPI Investment Management, Inc. as Fund Manager, Principal Distributor, Investment
Advisor and Transfer Agent (continuing term unless expressly terminated)

9. Appointment of External Auditor of the Fund

10. Amendment of Articles of Incorporation

11. Amendment of By-Laws

12. Other Matters

13. Adjournment
The Board of Directors has fixed 12:00 noon on 31 August 2021 (the “Record Date”) as the record date for the
determination of stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders. Only
holders of shares of common stock as at the Record Date will be entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting of the

Stockholders.

Given the restrictions posed by the community quarantine, stockholders may only attend the meeting through
remote communication.

In order that your stock may be represented at the meeting, please accomplish the enclosed Proxy Form and
return it via mail / email / fax on or before 14 October 2021 to the Office of the Corporate Secretary through the
following:

Via Mail: 19/F BPI Buendia Center, Sen. Gil J. Puyat Ave., Makati City
Via Email: pami_asm@bpi.com.ph
Via Fax: (02) 8580-4682

Stockholders who intend to participate in the meeting through remote communication shall notify the Corporate
Secretary by sending an email to pami_asm@bpi.com.ph before 14 October 2021. Registered Stockholders will
receive an email confirmation containing the details about joining the webinar. Stockholders may exercise the
right to vote through remote communication or in absentia, subject to validation.

(signature page follows)



Very truly yours,

% . L A %a«/
MA. ADELINA S. GATDULA
Corporate Secretary



PART 1.

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders
Date: 22 October 2021
Time: 10:30 a.m.
Place: Virtual meeting via Zoom

Registration for voting in absentia:
https://lwww.viashsystem.com/bpi-imi

Registrant’'s Mailing Address: 19/F, BPI Buendia Center, Sen. Gil J. Puyat Ave., Makati City

The date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to stockholders is September 30, 2021

2. Dissenters' Right of Appraisal

As provided by Title X of the Revised Corporation Code of the Philippines (Republic Act No. 11232)
(“Revised Corporation Code”), any stockholder of a corporation shall have the right to dissent and demand
payment of the fair value of his shares in the following instances:

2.1 In case an amendment to the Articles of Incorporation has the effect of changing or restricting the
rights of any stockholders or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any respect superior
to those of outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or shortening the term of corporate
existence;

2.2 In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the corporate property and assets as provided in the Revised Corporation Code;

2.3 In case of merger or consolidation; and

2.4 In case of investment of corporate funds for any purpose other than the primary purpose of the
corporation.

In order for the stockholder to exercise the right, he or she must vote against any of the enumerated
instances which the corporation will pursue. The procedures in the exercise of the right are the following:

2.5 Written demand on the corporation within 30 days after the date that the vote was taken.

2.6 Submission of the shares of the dissenting stockholder to the corporation for notation within 10 days
from the written demand. The corporation has to pay the stockholder with the fair value of the
shares within 30 days after demanding payment for his or her shares.

2.7 Failure to make the demand within 30 days after the date on which the vote was taken shall be

deemed a waiver of the appraisal right.

There will be no matters that will be taken up at the meeting which may warrant the exercise of this right.
3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

There is no person who has been a director or officer of PMIF at any time since the beginning of the last
calendar year, or who is a nominee for election as director, or an associate of any of the foregoing persons who
has a substantial interest in any matter to be acted upon at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. No member of the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) has informed PMIF that he intends to oppose any action to be taken by PMIF at
the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof
@ The total number of outstanding shares as of June 30, 2021 is 791,846,198, all of which are

common and voting. Every stockholder shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each share of stock held as of the
established record date with respect to all matters to be taken up during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

A stockholder entitled to vote at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting shall have the right to vote in person
or by proxy the number of shares registered in his name in the stock and transfer book of PMIF as of the Record
Date. With respect to the election of directors, said stockholder may vote such number of shares and give one
candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of his shares shall
equal, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall see fit, provided,
that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number of shares owned by him multiplied by the
whole number of directors to be elected.



(b)

Statement, and to receive notice of, and vote during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

(©()

The name, address, citizenship, number of shares held, and percentage of total ownership of a person

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

All stockholders of record as of August 31, 2021 are entitled to receive this Information

(including any group) owning more than 5% of the outstanding voting shares of PMIF as of June 30, 2021 is as

follows:
(3) Name of Beneficial
(1) Title of (2) Name and Address of Owner and 4) (5) No. of (6) Percentage
Record Owner and ; S . .
Class . oo ) relationship with Citizenship Shares of Class Held
Relationship with the issuer
Record Owner
PHILPLANS FIRST, INC.
6/F UN Ave., Philam Life Bldg
Ermita, PHILPLANS FIRST, - 0
Common Manila, Metro Manila Philippines INC.! Filipino 54,365,461 54.37%
1226
(Stockholder)
PHILAM PROPERTIES
CORPORATION
17F 5th Ave. cor. 26th St., Net
Lima PHILAM PROPERTIES - 0
Common | g4, Philam Life Head Office, | CORPORATION? Filipino 17,842,882 17.84%
Bonifacio Global City Taguig,
Metro
Manila Philippines
CARLOS, ROSARIO TERESA
REYES CARLOS, ROSARIO
Common | 23 Lakeview Drive Pasig Metro TERESA REYES Filipino 11,000,000 11.00%
Manila Philippines
LBP-PROVIDENT FUND
24F 1598 MH Del Pilar Cor. Dr.
Quintos St., Landbank Bldg. LBP-PROVIDENT . o
Common Malate Manial Metro Manila FUND? Filipino 7,428,819 7.43%
Philippines 1004
(c)(ii)  Security Ownership of Management as of June 30, 2021
Title of Class Name of Beneficial Owner Amount and Nature of Citizenship Percent of Class

Beneficial Ownership

" Ms. Maria Melinda Bustamante will represent and vote the shares of PHILPLANS FIRST, INC.
% Mr. Eric Lustre will represent and vote the shares of PHILAM PROPERTIES CORPORATION.
® Ms. Virgina Limbo will represent and vote the shares of LBP-PROVIDENT FUND.




Roberto F. De Ocampo

Eugenio Lopez Foundation Building, Col. Joseph R.
Mcmicking Campus, 123 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City
(Chairman)

Common 1 (R) Filipino 0.0000%

Elenita G. Villamar

17/F Net Lima Bldg., 5th Avenue cor. 26th Street,
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City

(Director & Treasurer)

Common 1 (R) Filipino 0.0000%

Eric S. Lustre

17/F Net Lima Bldg., 5th Avenue cor. 26th Street,
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City

(Director)

Common 1 (R) Filipino 0.0000%

Reynaldo G. Geronimo
Common No. 5 Zinia Street, Valle Verde 2, Pasig City 1 (R) Filipino 0.0000%
(President & Director)

Arleen May S. Guevara

17/F Net Lima Bldg., 5th Avenue cor. 26th Street,
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City

(Director)

Common 1 (R) Filipino 0.0000%

Meliton B. Salazar, Jr.
Common No. 28 Hunt Street, Filinvest East, Quezon City 1 (R) Filipino 0.0000%
(Independent Director)

Fernando J. Sison IlI

3 Jocson St., Xavierville 1, Loyola Heights, Quezon
City

(Independent Director)

Common 1 (R) Filipino 0.0000%

Ma. Floriliz L. Pedernal

19/F, BPI Buendia Center, Sen. Gil J. Puyat Ave.,
Makati City

(Treasurer)

Common 0 Filipino 0.0000%

Ma. Adelina S. Gatdula

Penthouse, Liberty Center, 104 H.V. Dela Costa
Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City

(Corporate Secretary)

Common 0 Filipino 0.0000%

Paolo John D. Purganan

19/F, BPI Buendia Center, Sen. Gil J. Puyat Ave.,
Makati City

(Compliance Officer and Data Protection Officer)

Common 0 Filipino 0.0000%

TOTAL 7 (R) Filipino 0.0000%

(c)(iii) ~ Voting Trust Holders of 5% or more

As of June 30, 2021, there is no voting trust or similar arrangement for 5% or more of PMIF’s shares.
There are no arrangements which may result in a change of control in PMIF.

(d) Change of Control

There was no change in control in PMIF that occurred since the beginning of the last calendar year.

5. Directors and Executive Officers
a. The following are the current directors and officers of PMIF:

Name Age | Citizenship Position Term
Roberto F. De I . 1 year (2020-
Ocampo 74 Filipino Chairman of the Board 2021)
Reynaldo G. Geronimo | 75 Filipino President and Director ;gzesr (2020-
Arleen May S. I . 1 year (2020-
Guevara 58 Filipino Director 2021)

. _ . 1 year (2020-
Eric S. Lustre 57 Filipino Director 2021)
Elenita G. Villamar 57 Filipino Director and Treasurer ;gzesr (2020-
Fernando J. Sison IlI 69 Filipino Independent Director %gzeﬁr (2020-
Meliton B. Salazar, Jr. 54 Filipino Independent Director %gzefsr (2020-
Ma. Adelina S. Gatdula | 58 Filipino Corporate Secretary %gzefsr (2020-
Paolo John D. 36 Filipino Compliance Officer and Data Protection 1 year (2020-




Purganan

| | Officer | 2021)

b. The following are the names of the persons who are nominees for election for year 2021-2022:

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

AGE

CREDENTIALS

Roberto de Ocampo
(Incumbent
Chairman of the
Board)

74

Dr. De Ocampo is a Cum Laude graduate with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from the Ateneo de
Manila University. He has a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the University of Michigan and a
post-graduate diploma from the London School of Economics. He has also been conferred three Doctorates
(Honoris Causas). Since 2014, Dr. De Ocampo is Chairman of the Board of the following PAMI-managed funds:
Philam Fund, Inc., PHILAM GLOBAL BOND FUND, INC. , Philam Dollar Bond Fund, Inc., Philam Strategic
Growth Fund, Inc., Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc., Philam Strategic Growth Fund, Inc., PAMI Global Bond
Fund, Inc., PAMI Asia Balanced Fund, Inc. (since 2009), PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc. (since 2011), and PAMI
Equity Index Fund, Inc. (since 2014). Dr. De Ocampo was previously the President of the Asian Institute of
Management. From 1992 to 1998, he served as the Secretary of Finance under the Ramos administration and
was widely recognized as the principal architect of the resurgence of the Philippine economy.

Reynaldo Geronimo
(Incumbent Director
and President)

75

Atty. Geronimo is a cum laude graduate of Bachelor of Arts (A.B.) at the Ateneo de Manila University. He
graduated Second Honors from Ateneo Law School in 1968. He also has a Master of Laws with specialization in
Trusts and Estates from the University of Pennsylvania. He is currently a partner in the Romulo Mabanta
Buenaventura Sayoc & de los Angeles Law Firm and a co-Chairman of the Banking Group. Atty. Geronimo is
known as the Trust Guru, with a regular column in the Manila Standard Today. He is also a bar reviewer in
Taxation at the UP Law Center, the UP College of Law, the Law School of UST’s Civil Law Faculty, the College
of Law of Liceo de Cagayan, and the Ateneo Law School. Atty. Geronimo is a Director of the following PAMI-
managed funds since 2014: Philam Fund, Inc., PHILAM GLOBAL BOND FUND, INC. , Philam Dollar Bond
Fund, Inc., Philam Strategic Growth Fund, Inc., Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc., Philam Strategic Growth
Fund, Inc., PAMI Global Bond Fund Philippines, Inc., PAMI Asia Balanced Fund Inc., PAMI Horizon Fund Inc.,
and PAMI Equity Index Fund, Inc.

Arleen May S.
Guevara
(Incumbent Director)

58

Ms. Guevara is the Senior Vice President and Chief Investment Officer of Philamlife and is currently a Director
of PAMI. Ms. Guevara was the PAMI Chairman from 2011-2013. Since 2012, Ms. Guevara has been the
director of Philam Fund, Inc., PHILAM GLOBAL BOND FUND, INC. , Philam Dollar Bond Fund, Inc., Philam
Strategic Growth Fund, Inc., Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc., Philam Strategic Growth Fund, Inc., PAMI
Global Bond Fund Philippines, Inc., PAMI Asia Balanced Fund Inc., PAMI Horizon Fund Inc., PAMI Global
Emerging Markets Fund, Inc. and PAMI Global Equity Fund, Inc. She is also a director (since 2008) at the
following - Science Park of the Phils., Inc., Manila Exposition Complex, Inc., Beacon Property Ventures, Inc.,
Regatta Properties, Inc., and Cebu Light Industrial Park, Inc. Prior to joining Philamlife, she was Deputy Director
of the Treasury Department of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas. Ms. Guevara is a magna cum laude graduate of
Bachelor of Science in Applied Mathematics from the University of the Philippines.

Eric S. Lustre
(Incumbent Director)

57

Mr. Eric S. Lustre is the President and Chief Executive Officer of Philam Asset Management, Inc. Mr. Lustre is
also currently serving as the President of Tower Club Corporation since October 2014, as the Chief Executive
Officer of Philam Properties since March 2015, as the Head of Real Estate Investment of Philam Life since
2011, as the Country Credit Officer of Philam Life since 1993, and as the Head of Corporate Finance of Philam
Life since 1994. Since October 2009, Mr. Lustre is a Director in the following companies representing Philam
Life: Philam-Equitable Life Assurance Company, ICCP Holdings, Inc., Science Park of the Philippines, Inc.,
Regatta Properties, Inc., Beacon Property Ventures, Inc., Pueblo de Oro Development Corporation, Cebu Light
Industrial Park, Inc., and RFM-Science Park of the Philippines, Inc. He is also a Director of PHINMA Corporation
as a representative of Philam Life since February 2011. Since November 2016, Mr. Lustre served as Director of
the following PAMI-managed Funds: PAMI Asia Balanced Fund, Inc., PAMI Equity Index Fund, Inc., PAMI
Global Bond Fund, Inc., PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc., PHILAM GLOBAL BOND FUND, INC. , Philam Dollar Bond
Fund, Inc., Philam Fund, Inc., Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc., and Philam Strategic Growth Fund, Inc. Prior
to joining Philam Life and PAMI, Mr. Lustre served in the Analyst, Credit & Corporate Banking Group of Far East
Bank & Trust Company and as Assistant Manager in the Local Corporate Department of Citibank N.A. Manila
Branch. Mr. Lustre obtained his Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Management from the Ateneo de
Manila University and he holds a Masters in Business Management Major in Finance from the Asian Institute of
Management.

Elenita G. Villamar
(Incumbent Director
and Treasurer)

57

Ms. Villamar is the Head of Finance for Philam Asset Management, Inc. Prior to her current position in PAMI,
Ms. Villamar was the Vice President for Financial Planning and Cost Management for Philamlife. She has been
with Philam for 29 years and has occupied various senior positions in the organization. Ms. Villamar is a
Certified Public Accountant with several professional certifications. She has a Bachelor of Science degree in
Commerce and Accountancy from the University of Santo Tomas.

Fernando J. Sison IlI
(Incumbent
Independent
Director)

69

Mr. Fernando J. Sison Il is the Treasurer of ALFM Money Market Fund, Inc., ALFM Peso Bond Fund, Inc.,
ALFM Dollar Bond Fund, Inc., ALFM Euro Bond Fund, Inc., ALFM Growth Fund, Inc., and Philippine Stock
Index Fund, Corp. He is also a Director and the Treasurer of ALFM Global Multi-Asset Income Fund, Inc. and an
Independent Director of ALFM Retail Corporate Fixed Income Fund, Inc. and ALFM Fixed Income Feeder Fund,
Inc. (formerly ALFM Principal Preservation Fund, Inc.) He used to be the President of BPI Investment
Management, Inc. from May 2004 up to June 2012. He previously served as Vice President and head of many
of BPI's divisions, including AMTG Retail Trust Division, AMTG Portfolio Management Division, SDG Retail
Funds Distribution, and Private Banking Unit. He was assigned to BPI International Finance Ltd. (HK) as Head
of Investment Management Division and to BPI Capital Corporation — Corporate Finance Group as Vice
President and Head of Syndications and Underwriting.

Meliton B. Salazar,
Jr.

(Incumbent
Independent
Director)

54

Mr. Salazar has a Ph.D. in International Relations, Major in International Development and Development
Management from the School of International Service, The American University, Washington, D.C.; an M.A.in
International Political Economy and Development from Fordham University, New York and a B.S. Management
Engineering degree from the Ateneo de Manila University. Dr. Salazar is an established figure in the academe
being currently the president of the following: University of lloilo, lloilo City (since 2009), University of
Pangasinan (since 2009 to present), Cagayan de Oro College (since 2005), and Araullo University (since 2004).
Dr. Salazar is also Senior Vice President of PHINMA Education Network (since 2003). Among Dr. Salazar's
previous positions were President & CEO, STI International (2002 to 2003), President & CEO, iAcademy (2002
to 2003), President & CEO, Systems Technology Institute, Inc. (2001 to 2002) and COO of Systems Technology
Institute, Inc. (2000 to 2001). Since November 2013, Mr. Salazar has been Director of the following PAMI-
managed mutual funds - Philam Fund, Inc., PHILAM GLOBAL BOND FUND, INC. , Philam Dollar Bond Fund,
Inc., Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc., Philam Strategic Growth Fund, Inc., PAMI Global Bond Fund
Philippines, Inc., PAMI Asia Balanced Fund Inc., PAMI Horizon Fund Inc., and PAMI Equity Index Fund, Inc.

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Roberto de Ocampo and the members are Reynaldo
Geronimo and Meliton B. Salazar. Messr. De Ocampo nominated Messrs. Sison & Salazar for independent




director. Messrs. de Ocampo, Sison & Salazar are not related up to the fourth civil degree of consanguinity or
affinity.

There is no person who is not an officer and is expected by PMIF to make significant contribution to the
Fund.

The Nomination Committee pre-screened candidates and came up with a shortlist of nominees to be
presented to the shareholders. Candidates must have the following qualifications to become a member of the
Board:

* Every director shall own at least one (1) share of the capital stock of PMIF, which share shall stand
in his or her name in the books of the PMIF;

* Be acollege graduate;

* Have adequate competency and an understanding of the business of an open-end investment
company;

* Atleast 21 years of age;

* Proven to possess integrity and probity; and

* Must be assiduous.

The Nomination Committee selected the independent directors in accordance with Rule 38 of the
Securities Regulation Code (“SRC”) and the Revised Code of Corporate Governance (SEC Memorandum
Circular No. 6, Series of 2009, as amended).

(c) PMIF does not maintain any employees nor does it maintain any payroll. PMIF does not expect in the
foreseeable future to have any employees.

(d) The incumbent directors, officers, and nominees for director are not related to each other up to the
fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity.

(e) None of the directors, officers and nominees for director has been involved in the following legal
proceedings within the past 5 years:

* Any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which such person was a general partner
or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two years prior to that time;

* Any conviction by final judgment, including the nature of the offense, in a criminal proceeding,
domestic or foreign, or being subject to a pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign,
excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses;

* Being subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated,
of any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily enjoining,
barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of business, securities,
commodities or banking activities; and

* Being found by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the
Commission or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign Exchange or other organized
trading market or self-regulatory organization, to have violated a securities or commodities law or
regulation, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended, or vacated.

® There was no transaction or proposed transaction during the last 2 years to which PMIF was or is to be
a party.
6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

There is no existing Compensation Committee. PMIF does not maintain any employees nor does it
maintain any payroll. PMIF does not expect in the foreseeable future to have any employees. Additionally, none
of the directors or officers is given any compensation. However, the directors receive per diems and other
reimbursements for their attendance at board meetings. There are no other arrangements, standard or otherwise,
being paid to the directors. Directors are not compensated in any manner for committee participation, special
assignments, or any other arrangements.

There are no compensatory plans or arrangements for any officer that will result in or will result from the
resignation, retirement or any other termination of such officer in any amount.

For every board meeting attended by each director, he or she will receive a per diem of Php7,500.00.
The directors received the following amounts:

Payment Period | Aggregate Amount Received (in Php)
2019 185,013
2020 153,000




| 2021 (estimate) | 153,000

7. Independent Public Accountants

The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Meliton Salazar, Jr. and the members are Roberto De Ocampo
and Fernando Sison .

Beginning the calendar year 2009, the accounting firm of Isla Lipana & Co. (“Isla Lipana”) was appointed
as external auditor of PMIF. Ms. Ruth F. Blasco has been the signing partner of Isla Lipana since 2016 up to
2018. The current signing partner is Ms. Imelda Dela Vega-Mangundaya. Isla Lipana will be recommended to
the stockholders for appointment for 2021-2022. PMIF does not expect any representative from Isla Lipana to be
present during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

PMIF will comply with Revised SRC Rule 68 Part 1(3)(B)(ix) re: rotation of external auditors. In
recommending this action, the members of the Board carefully considered Isla Lipana’s performance, its
independence with respect to the auditing services to be performed, and its general reputation for adherence to
professional auditing standards.

8. Compensation Plans

No action is to be taken with respect to Item 8 during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange
No action is to be taken with respect to Item 9 during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.
10. Modification or Exchange of Securities

PMIF does not intend to modify any class of its securities, or issue or authorize the issuance of one
class of securities in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.

11. Financial and Other Information

PMIF has incorporated by reference the following as contained in the Management Report (attached as
Annex A), SEC Form 17-A (Annual Report) (attached as Annex B), and SEC Form 17-Q (Quarterly Report) for
the period ended March 31, 2021 (Quarterly Report) (attached as Annex C).
12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

PMIF does not have any plans to merge or consolidate with any entity. Neither does it have any plans to
acquire the securities of any other entity, any other going business, or the assets thereof. It does not have any
plan to sell or transfer all or any substantial parts of its assets. Neither does it have any plans to dissolve or
liquidate.
13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

PMIF does not own any real property and does not intend to acquire any real property.
14. Restatement of Accounts

PMIF does not intend to restate any of its asset, capital or surplus accounts.

D. OTHER MATTERS

15. Action with Respect to Reports
No action is to be taken with respect to Item 15 during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.
16. Matters Not Required to be Submitted

All matters or actions to be taken up in the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting require the vote of the
stockholders.

17. Amendment of Charter, By-laws or Other Documents
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The Fund will submit the following to the stockholders for approval, which matters were approved by the
Board during its meeting on July 8, 2021:

A. Amendment of the Articles of Incorporation

= Amendment of the Articles of Incorporation of the Fund to: (1) change its corporate hame from
“Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc.” to “ALFM Cash Management Fund, Inc.”; (2) change its
investment objective, such that it reads as follows: “The investment objective of the Fund is to
preserve capital through investment in various types of debt and fixed income securities
denominated in US dollars;” and (3) change its principal office address to “19/F, BPI Buendia
Center, Sen. Gil J. Puyat Ave., Makati City, Metro Manila, Philippines.”

= The amendments to the corporate hame and investment objective are made to reflect the terms
of the agreement with The Philippine American Life and General Insurance (Philam Life)
Company/PAMI Group. The amendment to the principal office address is made to reflect the
change in principal office address as the fund moves to the location of its new Fund Manager,
BPI Investment Management, Inc.

B. Amendment of By-Laws

= Amendment of the By-Laws of the Fund to: (1) include electronic modes of communication
(Article 1, Section 1. Annual Meetings); (2) revise the notice period for Stockholders’ Meetings
(Article I, Section 3. Notice) to 21 days; (3) establish various committees to promote corporate
governance (Article Ill. Committees of the Corporation) such as: Nomination Committee,
Audit Committee, Independent Oversight Committee, Corporate Governance Committee,
and Related Party Transactions Committee; (4) include Compliance Officer (Article IV.
Officers of the Corporation); (5) include investment objectives (Article VII. Investment Policy);
(6) definition of assets and liabilities (Article VIII. Determination of Net Asset Value), and (7)
change the date of the annual stockholders’ meeting (Article I, Section 1. Annual Meetings).

= The amendments are made to comply with the requirements of the Revised Corporation
Code, the Securities Regulation Code and the Investment Company Act and its Implementing
Rules and Regulations.

C. Amendment of Registration Statement and Prospectus

= Amendment of the Registration Statement and Prospectus to reflect the matters from items
(A) through (B) above.

D. Registration of Units of Participation

= Registration of Units of Participation of the Fund, in accordance with the Implementing
Rules and Regulations of the Investment Company Act.

18. Other Proposed Action

There are no other proposed actions with respect to any matter not specifically referred to above during
the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

19. Voting Procedures

Unless otherwise provided by law, each stockholder shall, at every meeting of the stockholders, be
entitled to one vote, in person or by proxy, for each share with voting rights held by such stockholder.
Stockholders may also exercise the right to vote through remote communication or in absentia as authorized by
resolution of the majority of the Board of Directors of the Fund.

All elections and all questions, except as otherwise provided by law, shall be decided, either by majority
or 2/3 votes in accordance with the Revised Corporation Code, of the stockholders present in person or by proxy
entitled to vote thereat, a quorum (majority of the issued and outstanding capital stock having voting powers)
being present.

Unless required by law, or demanded by a stockholder present in person or by proxy at any meeting and
entitled to vote thereat, the vote on any question will not be by ballot. In case of a vote by ballot, each ballot shall
be signed by the stockholder voting in his name or by his proxy if there be such proxy, and shall state the number
of shares voted by him. The Corporate Secretary of PMIF will count and tabulate the votes.
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20. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

No person who has been a director or officer of PMIF or a nominee for election as a director of PMIF nor
any of their associates, has a substantial interest in any matter to be acted upon at the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting.

No director of PMIF has informed it in writing that he or she intends to oppose any matter to be acted
upon at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.
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UPON WRITTEN REQUEST OF ANY OF THE STOCKHOLDERS OF RECORD ENTITLED TO NOTICE OF,
AND TO VOTE AT, THE MEETING, PMIF SHALL FURNISH HIM WITH A COPY OF ITS ANNUAL REPORT
ON SEC FORM 17-A WITHOUT CHARGE. ANY SUCH WRITTEN REQUEST SHOULD BE ADDRESSED TO:

BPI INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, INC.
19/F, BPI Buendia Center, Sen. Gil J. Puyat Ave.
Makati City, Philippines
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PART Il

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN A PROXY FORM
1. Identification

The proxy solicitation is made by PHILAM MANAGED INCOME FUND, INC. (the “Company”),
represented by Mr. Roberto Martin S. Enrile, the President of BPI Investment Management, Inc. (“BIMI”), the
Company’s investment adviser. The proxy solicitation is in favor of Mr. Enrile or in case of his non-
attendance, the Chairman of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting chosen in accordance with the Company’s
By-Laws.

All costs and expenses incidental to the proxy solicitation will be borne, directly or indirectly, by the
Company.

2. Instructions

@ The security holder is instructed to complete, and affix their signature on the attached form.
0] If the securities are owned by two or more joint owners, the proxy form must be
signed by all of the joint owners.
(i) If the securities are owned in an “and/or” capacity, the proxy form must be signed by
either one of the owners.
(i) If the securities are owned by a corporation, association, partnership or

unincorporated entity, the proxy form must be accompanied by a certification, signed
by a duly authorized officer, partner or representative of such corporation, association,
partnership or unincorporated entity, that designates and empowers an authorized
signatory to sign the proxy form pursuant to the constitutive documents or duly
approved policies of such corporation, association, partnership or unincorporated
entity for this particular purpose.

(b) The security holder appoints Mr. Roberto Martin S. Enrile, or in case of his non-attendance, the
Chairman of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting, to represent and vote all shares registered in
his or her name as proxy of the undersigned security holder.

(c) The security holder shall clearly indicate the date of execution of the proxy form. A proxy form
which is undated, post-dated, or which provides that it shall be deemed to be dated as of any
date subsequent to the date on which it is signed by the security holder, shall not be valid.

(d) The security holder shall sign the proxy form or have the form signed by a duly authorized
representative, and file the same with the Corporate Secretary not later than 5:00 p.m. on
October 14, 2021.

(e) Retrieval and validation of all the proxy forms shall be administered by the Corporate Secretary
and persons designated by the Corporate Secretary who shall be under his supervision and
control from October 14, 2021 to October 22, 2021.

3. Revocability and Validity of Proxy

The proxy form in favor of the Company shall be irrevocable and shall be effective and valid for a period
of five (5) years from the date of its execution. There is no formal procedure or limitation for the right of
revocation of a proxy before it is exercised.

4. Persons Making the Solicitation

PMIF is not soliciting any votes. Neither is PMIF aware of any director who intends to oppose any action
intended to be taken by PMIF

5. Interest of Certain Persons in Matters to be Acted Upon

There is no person who has been a director, independent director, or nominee for election as director, or
independent director, or officer of the Company and, to the best knowledge of the Company, no associate of
a director or independent director, or officer, or nominee for election as a director or independent director, or
officer of the Company, at any time since the beginning of the last calendar year, has any substantial interest
in any matter to be acted upon at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.
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PART Il N

SIGNATURE PAGE

Aftar reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the information s&t forth in this
re;g:EPés] u;x_ae,mpiete and comect  This report is signed in the City of MAKATICITY _ on
0

PHILAM MANAGED INCOME FUND, INC.

-

By: MA. ADELINA € GATDULA
Corporate Secretary
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*PLEASE FILL OUT AND SIGN THIS PROXY FORM AND RETURN OR FAX IMMEDIATELY TO:

BPI INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, INC.
19/F, BPI Buendia Center, Sen. Gil J. Puyat Ave., Makati City
(02) 8580-0900
Email: pami_asm@bpi.com.ph
Fax: (02) 8580-4682

STOCKHOLDER PROXY

The undersigned stockholder (the “Stockholder”) of PHILAM MANAGED INCOME FUND, INC. (the "Company"), hereby
appoints Mr. Roberto Martin S. Enrile, with full power of substitution and delegation, or, in case of his non-attendance, the
Chairman of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of the Company, chosen in accordance with the Company’s By-Laws, as the
Stockholder’s proxy to represent the Stockholder and vote all shares registered in the Stockholder’s name in the books of the
Company, at the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders to be conducted virtually via Zoom on October 22, 2021 at 10:30 am, and
any adjournments and postponements thereof, as fully to all intents and purposes as the stockholder might or could do if
present in person, hereby ratifying and confirming any and all actions to be taken during any said meetings and adjournments
thereof for the purpose of acting on the following matters:

1.

ooo ooo ooo

ooooood

ooog

ooo

ooo

Approval of minutes of previous Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on July 31, 2019

For
Against
Abstain

Approval of the 2020 Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements

For
Against
Abstain

Ratification and approval of the acts of the Board of Directors and Management since the last
Annual Stockholders’ Meeting

For
Against
Abstain

Election of Directors

The security holder may withhold authority to vote for any nominee by striking out the name of the
nominee. Please only check the box opposite the nominee you wish to elect.

Robert De Ocampo
Arleen May Guevara
Reynaldo Geronimo
Fernando J. Sison IlI*
Meliton Slazar, Jr.*
Eric s. Lustre

Elenita G. Villamar
*Independent Director

Confirmation of BPI Investment Management, Inc. as Fund Manager, Principal Distributor, Investment
Advisor and Transfer Agent (continuing term unless expressly terminated)

For
Against
Abstain

Appointment of external auditor for 2021

For
Against
Abstain

Approval of the Amendment of Articles of Incorporation reflect the following changes:

Change in Corporate Name — from “Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc.” to “ALFM Cash Management
Fund, Inc.”

For
Against
Abstain

Change in principal office address — to “19/F, BPI Buendia Center, Sen. Gil J. Puyat Ave., Makati City,
Metro Manila, Philippines”




ooo

ooo

ooo

ooo ooog ooo ooo

ooo
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For
Against
Abstain

Change in Investment Objective

For
Against
Abstain

Approval of the Amendment of By-Laws to reflect the following changes:

Date of annual meeting — last Friday of May or such other date determined by the Board

For
Against
Abstain

Notice of meeting — Notices shall be sent at least twenty-one (21) calendar days prior to the date of the

regular meeting

For
Against
Abstain

Participation of stockholders in the Stockholders’ Meeting through remote communication

For
Against
Abstain

Right to vote of stockholders through remote communication or in absentia

For
Against
Abstain

Inclusion of electronic modes of communication

For
Against
Abstain

Revision of notice period for Stockholders’ Meetings

For
Against
Abstain

Establishment of various committees to promote corporate governance

For
Against
Abstain

Inclusion of Compliance Officer

For
Against
Abstain

Inclusion of investment objectives

For
Against
Abstain

Alignment of definition of assets and liabilities

For
Against
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0O  Abstain

9. Approval to amend the Registration Statement and Prospectus to reflect items (7) and (8) above

For
Against
Abstain

ooo

10. Approval to register units of participation in accordance with the Implementing Rules and regulations of the
Investment Company Act

For
Against
Abstain

ooo

This proxy revokes and supersedes any previously executed proxy or proxies. This proxy shall be valid for a period of five (5)
years from the date of its execution.

This proxy, when properly executed, will be voted in the manner as directed herein by the stockholder. If no direction is made,
this proxy will be voted “For” the approval of the matter stated above and for such other matters as may properly come before
the meeting, including matters which the solicitors do not know a reasonable time before the solicitation are to be presented at
the meeting, and those incidental to the conduct of the meeting, in the manner described in the information statement and/or as
recommended by management or the board of directors.

Signed on this day of , in

Signature of Stockholder or Stockholder's Representative over Printed Name /
Portfolio Number
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Annex A. MANAGEMENT REPORT

Financial and Other Information
Market Information

PMIF is not listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). The shares are being sold by SEC Certified
Investment Solicitors (CISols) thru the fund’s authorized distributors.

Holders

As of June 30, 2021, there were a total of 580 holders of redeemable common stock (one class of
shares only).

Top 20 Shareholders
as of June 30, 2021

Number of Percentage of
Shareholders' Name Total Shares
Shares Held .
Outstanding

PHILPLANS FIRST,INC.

1 54,365,461.00 54.37%
PHILAM PROPERTIES CORPORATION

2 17,842,882.00 17.84%
CARLOS, CAROLINA PAULA

3 11,000,000.00 11.00%
LBP-PROVIDENT FUND

4 7,428,819.00 7.43%
CARLOS, ROSARIO TERESA REYES

5 2,714,001.00 2.71%
INTEGRATED BAR OF THE PHILIPPINES

6 2,162,491.00 2.16%
ESPIRITU, EMMA B

7 1,716,518.00 1.72%
CHUANG, KENNETH CHAN

8 857,979.00 0.86%
ASIAN ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL HUMAN RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PRACTITIONERS

9 FOUNDATIONS, INC 518,224.00 0.52%
VELASQUEZ, RINA ISABEL A

10 337,623.00 0.34%
SY, MARCIANO JR LEE

11 244,670.00 0.24%
ALTAVAS, YOLANDA M

12 146,413.00 0.15%
SARDALLA, PATRICIA A

13 100,449.00 0.10%
CERVANTES, CHRISTOPHER GOLPO

14 86,663.00 0.09%
PUEDA, DORIS CABASAG

15 86,363.00 0.09%
DACULOQOS, JOSIE LEGASPI

16 86,147.00 0.09%
ALEGRIA, GEMMA NONAILLADA

17 84,221.00 0.08%
SAN VICENTE BAGUIO CITY MULTIPURPOSE COOPERATIVE

18 84,200.00 0.08%
LIWAGAN, CATHERINE G

19 66,248.00 0.07%
CABRERA, ALMA S

20 28,030.00 0.03%

Dividends

PMIFI has not declared any cash dividends for the last three (3) years. The Board of PMIFI may decide
to declare dividends, whether in the form of cash, property or stock, from the unrestricted retained earnings of
the Fund at a time and percentage as the Board may deem proper and in accordance with the pertinent
laws.

Under the Investment Company Act, the Fund shall not pay any dividend, or make any distribution in
the nature of a dividend payment, wholly or partly from any source other than: (i) from the Fund’s accumulated
undistributed net income, determined in accordance with good accounting practices and including profits or
losses realized upon the sale of securities or properties; or (ii) from the Fund's earned surplus so
determined for the current or preceding fiscal year, unless such payment is accompanied by a written
statement which adequately discloses the source or sources of such payment. The SEC may prescribe the form
of such statement by rules or regulations or by order in the public interest and for the protection of investors.
The Fund shall also not advertise such dividends in terms of centavos or pesos per share without also stating
the percentage they bear to the par value per share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATIONS

AS OF JUNE 30, 2021

Philippine 2Q GDP contracted 1.3% quarter-on-quarter; despite headline year-on-year growth of 11.8%. This is
on the back of Enhanced Community Quarantine (ECQ) imposition in Metro Manila and other parts of the country
last April. The Service Sector, which accounts for 60% of the output, was the most affected as it contracted 2.8%
quarter-on-quarter. Household spending remains modest at +7.2% considering the 2Q2020 contracted 15.3%.
The figure of the household spending- which is a main driver of the economic growth in the Philippines- remains
fragile and at risk considering that there is an on-going concern over the mutation of Covid-19 strain to a more
lethal genome sequence.

Bangko Sentral has continued to reiterate that it will keep its policy accommodative until the economy recovers
and remains confident that they have an arsenal of policy tools ready to be deployed. Further rate cut seems to
be unwarranted or ineffective as credit growth remains negative.

Inflation continued to ease for the quarter as the June inflation settled at 4.1% from March-May’'s 4.5% and
February’s 4.7%; bringing year-to-date inflation average to 4.4%. The lower inflation is attributed to the lower
transportation cost which offset the still elevated food prices as meat prices remain stubborn with the supply
disruption due to the African Swine Fever.

With the dovish BSP and tempered inflation, government yields declined an average of 150 basis points. Money
market yields declined by an average of 215 basis points while the 1-3years tenor are lower by an average of 227
basis points.

For the quarter, the Philam Managed Income Fund bounced back to the positive return-on-equity with a quarter-
on-quarter return of 0.63%, bring year-to-date return to 0.18%, net of taxes and fees, or a NAV per share of PHP
1.3237 or PHP 0.0083 higher from previous quarter. Interest income from the FVTPL assets contributed to the
revenue of the fund along with the unrealized fair value gain for the quarter as yield declined on the intermediate
to short-end of the yield curve.

Current liquidity ratio remains healthy. No other notable matter to be reported.

For 3Q, we expect that Growth will remain sluggish with the vaccination rate low and the on-going health threat
from the Covid-19 which can further derail opening of the economy. At the current vaccination pace, the
Philippines is expected to achieve 70% herd immunity by Q2-2022. It is quite evident the importance of herd
immunity for the reopening of the economy as observed from other countries. With growth still moderate and
inflation slowing down, we expect the BSP to remain accommodative until end of 2022.

Top Five Key Performance Indicators

a) Performance vis-a-vis the Benchmark — The Fund ended the second quarter with a year-to-date return
of 0.18% net of taxes and fees, underperforming its benchmark by 80 basis points.

b) Portfolio Quality — The Fund’s portfolio should, at all times, adhere to the investment parameters as
indicated in the Fund’s prospectus. Based on the Fund’s total asset, the Fund is invested mostly in
government securities (37.28%), corporate securities (45.70%), cash and cash equivalent (16.94%) and
other assets (0.08%).

C) Market Share in the Industry — Philam Managed Income Fund is now categorized under the Peso
Denominated Bond Fund as it has a duration of more than 1 year. The Peso Bond Fund Category is
denominated mainly by ALFM Peso Bond Fund (71.2%), Philam Bond fund (11%) and Sun Life
Prosperity Bond Fund (7.8%). In the bond fund category, Philam Managed Income Fund has a 1.7%
market share.

d) NAV Growth vis-a-vis Industry Growth — The Fund's average daily net asset value for the second
quarter of 2021 was at PHP 1.08 Billion. The Bond Fund segment contracted by 0.17% while Philam
Manged Income Fund’s Trading NAV grew 5.84%.

e) Performance vis-a-vis Competition — The Fund’'s performance is also compared against the
performance of other players in the market. As of end-June 2021, Philam Managed Income Fund is
ranked fourth out of eleven funds.

Discussion and analysis of material events and/or uncertainties known to the management that would address
the past and would have an impact on future operations.




20

Any known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have material impact on the issuer’'s
liquidity:

Liquidity of the fund may be affected by the market's depth or the existence of readily available buyers and
sellers in the market.

Any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the company, including any
default or acceleration of an obligation:
None

All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), and
other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting
period:

None

Any material commitments for capital expenditures, general purpose of such commitments, expected sources of
funds for such expenditures:
None

Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a material
favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from continuing operations:
None

Any significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the issuer’s continuing operations:
The Fund Manager is not aware of any significant element of income or loss that did not arise from the Fund’s
continuing operations.

NAVPS for the 2™ Quarter of 2021:

QUARTER DATE NAVPS
2nd 05-Apr-21 1.3151 LOW
11-Jun-21 1.3257 HIGH

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020

Philippines 2020 GDP contracted 9.325%, the worst since World War 1l, on the back of the world’s longest and
most stringent lock-down measures due to the health crisis brought by the novel Corona-19 Virus which
impeded people’s mobility and disrupted supply chain, domestically and internationally. The extent of the
damage to the economy brought by the pandemic remains immeasurable as it continues to weigh on with no
medicine or vaccine available as of the year-end to curtail the effect of Covid-19 virus in the country. Like the
Philippines, the rest of the world economies suffered from lockdowns to various degree. Philippines
unemployment rate peaked at 17.7%

The Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas, for the year, reduced its overnight borrowing rate from 4% at the beginning of
the year to 2%; a total of 200 basis points reduction, in a bid to cushion the impact of the damage brought by the
pandemic to the economy. At the same time, the reserve requirement ratio (RRR) of the universal and
commercial banks were lowered by 200 basis points to encourage banks to continue lending to both retail and
corporate sectors, as well as, ensure sufficient liquidity in the monetary system. A 100 basis points reduction in
the RRR releases about PHP 90 Billion in to the system. To date, the RRR of the universal and commercial
banks is at 12%, thrift banks at 3% and rural banks at 2%.

2020 was a tumultuous year for the bond market. The yields climbed by an average of 20 basis points at the
beginning of the year, then reversing it the following month. By March, with the sudden “lock-down” in place and
anxiety level rose as people were prohibited from leaving their home, yields climbed as much as 40 basis points
across the yield curve with the bid/cover spread widened with the risk-adverse investors dashed for cash. To
calm the bond market, the government pledged to buy at least PHP 300 billion worth of government securities in
the secondary market and reduced its overnight policy rate aggressively to support the weakness of the
economy. By the end of the second quarter, the yields declined by 187 basis points on a quarter-on-quarter
basis. By end of the year, the yields have declined on average of 163 basis points for the full year.

For the year, the Philam Managed Income Fund gave a 5.14%, net of taxes and fees, or a Trading NAV per
share of PHP 1.3213 or PHP 0.0646 up from FY 2019 of PHP 1.2567. Despite a difficult year, coupled with low
interest environment, the Fund was able to have a higher Gross Income in 2020 of PPHP 63.78 Million vs
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2019's PHP 50.41 Million. This was brought about by security selection where the Fund began preferring highly
rated corporate securities versus government bonds in 2020, where the corporate securities typically carry a
spread over government security. As a result, the income from FVTPL rose by PH 12 Million and interest come
rose by PHP 1.2 Million. This led to a higher Earnings-Per-Share (EPS) of PHP 0.0784 vs 2019's EPS of
0.0371.

As the year ended, the Fund’s duration is at 1.72 years. For 2021, we expect Philippine economic growth to pick
up on the back of vaccination prospect and ease of lock down which will improve mobility and consumption. At
the same time, due to the reopening of economies globally, we expect inflation to pick up amidst higher oil
prices due to increase in mobility with pent-up demand. Supply chain will improve and recover. Infrastructure
projects of the government will be expedited to help buoy the economy back to pre-pandemic level. Near term,
we are also optimistic on domestic consumption with the impending delivery of vaccines and the near-term
catalyst of May 2022 national election.

As for the monetary policy, the BSP is expected to remain supportive with the overnight lending rate to remain
at 2% while there is room for further RRR cut to single digit from the current 12% in 2021 to support the
recovering economy. Short-term rates is expected to remain low on the back of ample liquidity despite the
expected higher debt supply coming from the private sector and government. Investors will remain risk adverse
until the health crisis is under control.

Thus, for 2020, the Fund will be cautiously positioning amidst higher inflation expectation and as the Philippine
economy recovers. Long-term investment in the fund is highly recommended to get the full reward of investing
and investors should be prepared to withstand short term volatility.

Top Five Key Performance Indicators

a) Performance vis-a-vis the Benchmark — The Fund ended 2020 with a gain of 5.14% net of taxes and fees,
outperforming its benchmark by 1 basis point.

b) Portfolio Quality — The Fund’s portfolio should, at all times, adhere to the investment parameters as indicated
in the Fund’s prospectus. The Fund was invested mostly in corporate securities (38.66%), government securities
(33.22%)), fixed income funds (5.60%), and cash and cash equivalent (22.52%)

based on total assets.

c) Market Share in the Industry — Philam Managed Income Fund is now categorized under the Peso
Denominated Bond Fund as it has a duration of more than 1 year. The Peso Bond Fund Category is
denominated mainly by ALFM Peso Bond Fund (70.4%), Philam Bond fund (11.6%) and Sun Life Prosperity
Bond Fund (8.4%). In the bond fund category, Philam Managed Income Fund has a 1.6% market share.

d) NAV Growth vis-a-vis Industry Growth — The Fund's average daily NAV for 2020 was at PHP 1.01 Billion. The
Philam Managed Income Fund with a duration of more than 1 year has joined the Peso-Denominated Bond Fund
Category. The Bond Fund segment grew by 1.70 % vs Philam Manged Income Fund’s Trading NAV growth of
11.101%.

e) Performance vis-a-vis Competition — The Fund’s performance is also compared against the performance of
other players in the market. As of end- December 2020, Philam Managed Income Fund is ranked fourth
out of eleven funds.

NAVPS per quarter for the year 2020:

QUARTER DATE NAVPS
1st 24-Mar-20 $1.0364 LOW
06-Mar-20 $1.1298 | HIGH
2nd 7-Apr-20 $1.0374 LOW
29-Jun-20 $1.0708 | HIGH
3rd 1-Jul-20 $1.0697 LOW
7-Aug-20 $1.0998 | HIGH
4th 3-Nov-20 $1.0853 LOW
15-Oct-20 $1.0941 | HiGH

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019
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The Fund’s total net assets increased over the three comparative years as a result of client subscriptions.

With BIMI's strategy to offer the Fund aggressively through its expanding distribution channels and to actively
manage the Fund’s assets, the performance will improve and AUM will grow. Hence, there is no known event
that may affect the continuity of operation of the Fund.

The table below summarizes the accounts with material movements (+/-5%) and their corresponding

explanations:

2019 2018 Change
Accounts In Philippine | In Philippine | In Philippine
In %
Pesos Pesos Pesos
IFolgsnual assets at fair value through profit or 101,729,310 99,350 646 2378664 2 39%
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,765,310 4,051,447 713,863 17.62%
Due to fund manager 156,513 429,736 -273,223 -63.58%
Retained earnings 39,719,441 33,572,805 6,146,636 18.31%
Income from financial assets at fair value 10,488,429 208,833 10,279,596 | 4922.40%
through profit and loss , net
Interest income 97,184 81,788 15,396 18.82%
Foreign exchange gains, net 10,719 788 9,931 1260.28%

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — The movement is attributable to the increase in corporate
bonds and government securities.

Accounts payable and accrued expenses - The movement is attributable to the increase of payable for fund
accounting services, registry and transfer agency fees and legal and audit fees. As well as increase in taxes
payable and payable to investors due to redemptions.

Due to fund manager — The movement is due to settlement of management fees and transfer agency fees from
previous year.

Retained earnings — The movement is attributable to the net income for the year 2019 as compared with the
previous year.

Income from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, net — The increase is attributable to the
movement of net unrealized fair value gains compared with the previous year.

Interest income — The movement is due to increase of earned interest of cash in banks at prevailing bank deposit
rates.

Foreign exchange gains/losses, net — The movement is characterized by increase in foreign exchange rates.

Top Five Key Performance Indicators

a. Asset Under Management — For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, PMIFI had AUM value
of $2.3 million or Php 121 million and US$2.2 million or Php115.4million, respectively.
b. Net Asset Value Performance

NAVPS per quarter for the year 2019:

QUARTER DATE NAVPS
1st 09-Jan-2019 | $1.0366 | | ow
28-Mar-2019 | $1.0672 | pgH

ond 17-Apr-2019 | $1.0587 | | ow
26-Jun-2019 | $1.0894 | |, 5h

3rd 10-Jul-2019 | $1.0853 | | ow
05-Sep-2019 | $1.1085 | HiGH

4th 13-Nov-2019 | $1.0899 | | ow
07-Oct-2019 | $1.1062 | iGN

NAVPS per quarter for the year 2018:
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QUARTER DATE NAVPS
1st 21-Mar-18 $1.0444 LOW
3-Jan-18 $1.0749 HIGH

2nd 27-Jun-18 $1.01 LOW

3-Apr-18 $1.049 HIGH

3rd 6-Sep-18 $0.9769 LOW
23-Aug-18 $1.0398 HIGH

Ath 26-Dec-18 $0.9275 LOW
28-Dec-18 $1.035 HIGH

c. Sales & Redemptions — PMIFI's net redemptions totaled Php0.95million for the year ended
December 31, 2019.
d. Fund Performance Against Competition — The table below summarizes the comparison of PMIFI's

performance against its competitors:

TOTAL
Fund Name NET SALES TOTAL SALES REDEMPTIONS
(in Php) (in Php) (in Php)
ALFM Dollar Bond Fund, Inc. -23,910,707 2,087,388,948 2,111,299,655
ATRAM Total Return Dollar Bond Fund, Inc. 82,123,275 485,643,107 403,519,832
First Metro Save and Learn Dollar Bond Fund, Inc. 1,338,908 1,654,766 315,858
Grepalife Dollar Bond Fund Corp. -460,762,354 67,736,500 528,498,854
PAMI Global Bond Fund Phils., Inc. -947,959 0 947,959
Philam Dollar Bond Fund, Inc. -247,107,838 133,471,169 380,579,007
Philequity Dollar Income Fund, Inc. 1,191,480 3,375,458 2,183,979
Sun Life Prosperity Dollar Abundance Fund, Inc. 5,900,891 74,542,711 68,641,820

e. Fund Manager’'s Market Outlook:

Trade Talks Turn Positive. The month began with some pessimism on trade talks, as US President Trump said
that he could wait another year before striking deal with China and could increase tariffs if an agreement can't be
reached, striking fear into markets. However, a conflicting report said that the US and China were edging closer
to a partial trade deal despite some early tensions, and that the US may remove a scheduled tariff hike on
Chinese imports on December 15. Eventually, Trump signed off on the terms of a phase-one trade deal, reaching
an agreement in principle with China. As the month went on, risk-assets continued to rally as the US suspended
its plans for new tariffs and reduced existing ones, while China pledged to increase purchases of American
agricultural products and made new commitments on intellectual property protections. Markets now await for the
formal signing of the phase-one trade deal, which is scheduled to happen on January 15, 2020. (Source:
Bloomberg)

Generally Strong US Data. The month began with an upbeat payroll report, as the US added 266k jobs versus
the previous month’s 128k figure and 180k estimates, which was the biggest monthly gain since January. The
unemployment rate fell to 3.5%, a 50-year low, while average hourly earnings increased by 3.1%, year on year.
Consumer sentiment was strong, with University of Michigan’s print at 99.3. Housing data beat analyst's
forecasts, and GDP for the third quarter was at 2.1%, in line with estimates. Personal income and spending were
in line with expectations at 0.5% and 0.4%, respectively.

Industrial production rose by 1.1%, faster than the 0.9% estimates. CPI for November printed at 2.1% year on
year, faster than the expected 2.0%, while the Fed’s preferred inflation gauge, the PCE core deflator, beat its
1.5% estimates as well at 1.6%. (Source: Bloomberg)

Fed Stands Pat. After three earlier cuts, the Fed kept its policy rates steady in its December 13 FOMC meeting,
sending a largely dovish message to markets. In his press conference, Fed Chair Powell said that the current
interest rate is “appropriate” to sustain the US economic expansion, and that the US economy and monetary
policy were in a good place. The dot plot showed that 13 officials predicted no change in rates for 2020, while
only four of the committee’s hawks seeing a 25-bp increase next year. This signals that rates will remain
unchanged in 2020 amid a solid economy, but they do predict higher rates the following year. Powell stated that it
would take an increase in inflation before the Fed would contemplate any rate hikes. (Source: Bloomberg)

Commentary

The positive sentiment surrounding the trade talks between the US and China sent US Treasury yields higher
and helped risk-assets rally, with US stocks reaching new highs. Strong US data gave room for the Fed to keep
interest rates unchanged in its December FOMC meeting, which also buoyed risk sentiment and Treasury yields.
Month on month, the US Treasury yield curve steepened, in line with the risk-on sentiment. The 2-yr yield fell by
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4 bps to close at 1.57%, while the 5-, 10- and 30-yr yields rose by 6, 14 and 18 bps to end the year at 1.69%,
1.92% and 2.39%, respectively. On the other hand, ROP yields were little changed, except for the 5-yr ROP,
which fell by 9 bps month on month to close at 2.12%. This led the ROPs to generally tighten against its US
counterparts, as risk assets rallied strongly to close the year. The 2-yr ROP rose by 4 bps to 1.91%, while the,
10- and 25-yr ROPs ended the month lower by 2-3 bps each to 2.43%, and 2.86%, respectively. As we approach
2020, the signing of the phase-one trade deal will be the highlight of January, while fresh economic and
geopolitical developments will continue to affect market sentiment.

Liquidity

There are no demands, commitments, events or uncertainties which will impair the liquidity of the fund. The Fund
is mandated by SEC, through Investment Company Act, to maintain at least 10% of its net assets to be invested
at liquid assets (ICA Rule 35 — 1 p. d4). But since the Fund has a contingency liquidity plan, the liquid assets can
be at a minimum of 5% of the Net Asset Value.

There are no events that triggered direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the Fund.
Material Transactions

There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations and other relationships of the
Fund with unconsolidated entities or other persons. There are no material commitments for capital expenditures.
There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales or revenues or income from continuing operations. PMIFI
knows no events that will cause a material change in the relationship between costs and revenues. Also, there
are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or financial performance other than
below statement.

The Fund, being subjected to mark-to-market valuation, depends significantly on the market value fluctuations of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss being held by it.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities including Recent Issuances of Securities Constituting and
Exempt Transactions - NONE

External Audit Fees

The following are the aggregate fees billed by the external auditors for each of the last two calendar
years (in Php):

Year Total
2019 Php132,376
2020 Php161,792

Note:
No tax fees were paid since there were no professional services rendered by Isla Lipana for tax
accounting compliance, advice, planning and any other form of tax service.

Similarly, no other fees were paid for products and services provided by Isla Lipana other than the
regular annual audit report.

The following are the PMIF Audit Committee’s approval policies & procedures for the external auditor:

¢ Recommend to the Board the selection of the external auditor, who will be accountable to the Board
and to the Audit Committee as representatives of the shareholders. The Board and the Audit
Committee will consider the external auditor's independence, effectiveness, and the approval of the
fees and other compensation to be paid to the external auditor. The Audit Committee should review
and discuss with the accountants on an annual basis all significant relationships the accountants
have with PMIF to determine the accountants' independence.

* Review the performance of the external auditor and approve any proposed discharge of the
external auditor when circumstances warrant.

e Periodically consult with the external auditor regarding internal controls and the fullness and
accuracy of PMIF’s financial statements.

* The Audit Committee will actively engage the external auditor in dialogues regarding independence.

* Adhere to the following procedures for the approval of services by the external auditor:

o The Audit Committee will annually approve the scope of, and fees payable for, the year-end
audit to be performed by PMIF’s external auditor for the next calendar year.

o PMIF may not engage the external auditor for any services unless they are approved by the
Audit Committee in advance of the engagement.
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o If PMIF wishes to engage the external auditor for any services, PMIF will define and present to
the Audit Committee specific projects and categories of the services to be provided, and fee
estimates, for which the advance approval of the Audit Committee is required. The Audit
Committee will review these requests and determine whether to pre-approve the engagement
of the external auditor for the specific projects and categories of service.

o PMIF will report to the Audit Committee regarding the actual spending for these projects and
services, compared to the approved amounts on a quarterly basis.

0 The Audit Committee Chairperson will report to the Audit Committee at each regularly
scheduled meeting the nature and amount of any non-audit services that he has approved.

Corporate Governance

The evaluation system adopted by PMIF to determine the level of compliance of the Board and top level
management with its Manual of Corporate Governance is based primarily on the SEC Corporate Governance
Self-Rating Form (CG-SRF).

PMIF has undertaken the following measures to fully comply with the adopted leading practices on good
corporate governance:

o Consider changes, improvements, or additions to current corporate disclosure procedures
o Implement processes for identifying items where timely corporate disclosure is necessary

Except for the required changes mandated by SEC, PMIF has no material deviations from its Manual of
Corporate Governance since it filed its CG-SRF with the SEC.

Apart from the foregoing changes or improvements being considered for corporate disclosures, there
are no plans to improve the current corporate governance of PMIF.

Other Disclosures

e There were no disagreements with the former accountant, on any matter of accounting any financial
disclosure.

e There were no known trends, events or uncertainties with material impact on liquidity and sales. Neither
were there events that would trigger direct or contingent financial obligations that are material to the
Fund, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

e There were no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements or obligations (including
contingent obligations) and other relationships of the Fund with unconsolidated entities or other persons
created during the reporting period.

e There were no material commitments for capital expenditures. The realized and unrealized gains on
stock and fixed income investments brought by market appreciation represent the significant element of
income from continuing operations.
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pwcC Isla Lipana & Co.

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Sharcholders of
Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc.

{An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

17F Philam Life Head Office, Net Lima Building
5" Avenue corner 26* St. Bonifacio Global City
Taguig 1634, Philippines

Report on the Audits of the Financial Statements
Our Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
finanrial position of Philam Managed Income Fund, Ine. (the *Fund”) as at December 31, 2020
and 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2020 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

What we have audited

The financial statements of the Fund comprise:

the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2020 and 201g;
the statements of total comprehensive income for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2020,

» the statements of changes in equity for each of the three yvears in the period ended
December 31, 2020;

= the statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020;
and

s the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the Code of Ethies for Professional Accountants
in the Philippines (Code of Ethics), together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethieal
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
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Isla Lipana & Co.

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Philam Managed [ncome Fund, Inc.

(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

Page 2

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the SEC Form 20-I8 (Definitive Information Statement) and SEC Form 17-A,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The SEC Form 20-18
(Definitive Information Statement) and SEC Form 17-A are expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditor’s report.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting process,
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes gur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc.

(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)
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As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal contral.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design andit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of aceounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Report on the Bureau of Internal Revenue Requirement

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 15 to the financial statements is presented
for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such supplementary information is the responsibility of management and has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audits of the basic financial statements. In
our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Isla Lipana & Co.

PTR No. 0024586, issued on January 5, 2021, Makati City

SEC A.N. (individual) as general auditors 9o670-SEC, Category A, valid to audit 2019 to 2023
Financial statements

SEC A.N. (firm) as general auditors 0142-SEC, Category A; valid to audit 2020 to 2024
financial statements

TIN 152-015-124

BIR A.N. 08-000745-047-2018, issued on December 10, 2018; effective until December g, 2021

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0142, effective until January 21, 2023

Makati City
May 17, 2021



Statements Required by Rule 68
Securities Regulation Code (SRC)

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc,

(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

17F Philam Life Head Office, Net Lima Building
5" Avenue corner 26 5t.,, Bonifacio Global City
Taguig 1634, Philippines

We have audited the financial statemnents of Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc. as at and for the year
ended December 31, 2020, on which we have rendered the attached report dated May 17, 2021, The
supplementary information shown in the Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend
Declaration, as additional component required by Part I, Section 4 of Rule 68 of the SRC, and
Schedules A, B, C, D, E, F and G, as required by Part II, Section 6 of Rule 68 of the SRC, is presented
for purposes of filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is not a required part of the
bagic financial statements. Such supplementary information is the responsibility of management and
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements.

In our opinion, the supplementary information has been prepared in accordance with Rule 68 of the
SEC.

Isla Lipana & Co.

FTR No. 0024586, issued on January 5, 2021, Makati City

SEC AN. (individual) as general auditors go670-SEC, Category A, valid to audit 2019 to 2023
Financial statements

SEC AN, (firm) as general auditors 0142-SEC, Category A; valid to audit 2020 to 2024
financial statements

TIN 152-015-124

BIR A.N. 08-000745-047-2018, issued on December 10, 2018; effective until December 9, 2021

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0142, effective until January 21, zo23

Makati City
May 17, 2021



Statement Required by Section 8-A, Revenue Repulations No. V-1

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc.

(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

17F Philam Life Head Office, Net Lima Building
5" Avenue corner 26" St. Bonifacio Global City
Taguig 1634, Philippines

None of the partners of the firm has any financial interest in Philam Managed Ineome Fund, Inc. or
any family relationships with its directors or fund manager.

The supplementary information on taxes and licenses is presented in Note 15 to the financial
statements.

Isla Lipana & Co.

PTR No. 0024586, issued on January 5, 2021, Makati City

SEC AN. (individual) as general auditors go670-5EC, Category A, valid to audit 2019 to 2023
Financial statements

SEC A.N. (firm) as general auditors 0142-5EC, Category A; valid to audit 2020 to 2024
financial statements

TIN 152-015-124

BIR AN. 08-000745-047-2018, issued on December 10, 2018; effective until December 9, 2021

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0142, effective until January 21, 2023

Makati City
May 17, 2021




Philam Managed Income Fund, Ine.
(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

Statements of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2020 and 2019
(All amounts in thousands of Philippine Peso)

Notes 2020 2018
ASSETS
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 2 231,718 147,727
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3 800,838 748,333
Other financial assets at amortized cost 4 188 222
Other assets 840 1,013
Total assets 1,033,583 807,295
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 5 43,238 5,169
Deposits for future subscriptions 59,929 B.B17
Total liabilities 103,167 13,986
EQUITY 6
Share capital 1,000 1,000
Share premium 56,202 60,422
Depaosits for future subscriptions 757 635 757,835
Retained eamings 115,579 64,252
Total equity 930416 883,309
Total liabilities and equity 1,033,583 897 285

(The notes on pages 1 to 26 are integral part of these financial staterments)
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Philam Managed Income Fund, Ine.
(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

Statements of Total Comprehensive Ineome

For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020

(All amounts in thousands of Philippine Peso, except per share amounts)

Motes 2020 2019 2018
INCOME
Income from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, net 3 58,747 46,605 1,568
Interest if 5,031 3,808 16,580
63,778 50,413 18,148
EXPENSES
Management fees 10 2 894 1,917 1,517
Fees and other charges g8 1,462 1,163 1,053
Taxes and licenses 15 699 107 81
Other 529 293 285
|, = 5,384 3,480 2936
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 58,394 46,933 15,212
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8 7,067 5,777 3,854
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR 51,327 41,156 11.358
OTHER COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME - - o
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 51,327 41,156 11,358
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 6 0.0784 0.0371 0.02684 Y

(The notes on pages 1 to 26 are integral part of these financial statements)




Philam Managed Income Fund, Inec.
(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

Statements of Changes in Equity
For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020
(All amounts in thousands of Philippine Peso)

Deposits for
Share Share future Retained
MNote  capital premium  subscriptions  eamings Total

Balance at January 1, 2018 983 100,996 : 11,738 113,717
Comprehensive incoma

Met income for the year - % - 11,358 11,358

Other comprehensive income - = - = -
Tatal comprehensive income for the year ] - - 11,358 11,358
Transactions with shareholders B

Issuance of shares 1,621 178,806 - - 180,527

Redemption of shares (1,604) (185,838) - - (187 440)

Deposits for future subscriptions - - 538,584 . 538 504
Total transactions with shareholders 17 (6,8930) 538,504 - 531,681
Balance at December 31, 2018 1,000 84,066 538,594 23,0086 656,756
Comprehensive income

Met income for the year - - - 41,158 41,158

Other comprehensive income - - - = =
Total comprehensive income for the year = - - 41,158 41,156
Transactions with shareholders 6

Issuance of shares 2,228 235,300 a - 237,528

Redemption of shares (2,228) (268,944) - - (271,172)

Deposits for future subscriptions - - 218,041 - 219,041
Total transactions with sharaholders - (33 644) 218 041 - 185,397
Balance at December 31, 2018 1,000 60,422 757 635 64,252 883,308
Comprehensive income

MNet income for the year - = - 51,327 51,327

Other comprehensive income - - - - -
Total comprahensive income for the year - - - 51,327 51,327
Transactions with shareholders 8

Issuance of shares 3,782 480,038 - - 483 820

Redemption of shares (3,782 (484, 258) - - (488,040
Total transactions with shareholders s {4,220) - - {4,220)
Balance at December 31, 2020 1,000 56,202 757 B35 115,579 930,416

(The notes on pages 1 to 26 are integral part of these financial statements)




Philam Managed Income Fund, Ine.
(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

Statements of Cash Flows
For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020
(All amounts in thousands of Philippine Peso)

Notes 2020 2018 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax 58,354 48,933 15212
Adjustment for:
Income from financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss, net 3 (58,747) (46 8605) {1,568)

Interest income ¥ (5,031) (3.808)  (16,580)
Operating loss before changes in operating

assets and liabilities (5,384) (3,480) (2,938)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 3 (29.8974) (359,829) (217,058)

Other assets 173 (B34) 380
Investment securities at amaortized cost - - (51,455)
Other financial assets at amortized cost - - (1,064)

Increase in accounts payable and
accrued expenses 38,089 1,244 643
Net cash generated by (used in) operations 2,884 (362 689) (271,510)
Interest received 41,280 21,561 18,784
Income taxes paid (7,067} (5,777) (3,854)
Net cash generated by (used in) operating

activities 37,087 (346,815) (256,580)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of shares 6 483,820 237,528 180,527
Payments for shares redeemed 5] (488,040) (271,172) (187,440)
Proceeds from deposit for future su bscription (3] 51,112 227 858 538,554
Net cash from financing activities 46,862 194 214 531,681
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 83,985 (152,701) 275,101
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
January 1 147,727 300,428 25,327
December 31 2 231,716 147 727 300,428

(The notes on pages 1 to 26 are integral part of these financial statements)
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Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc.
(An Open-End Mutual Fund Campany)

NMotes to the Financial Statements
As at December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for each of the three vears in the period ended December 31, 2020
(All amounts are shown in thousands of Philippine Peso, unless otherwise stated)

1 General information

Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc. (the “Fund”) is an open-end mutual fund company engaged in the
sale of its shares of stock, the proceeds of which are invested in fixed income investments. It was
registered on February 27, 2006 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under the
Investment Company Act of 1960 or Republic Act 2629 and The Revised Securities Act or Batas
Pambansa Blg. 178. As an open-end mutual fund company, its outstanding shares are redeemable
anytime at the holder’s option based on the net asset value (NAV) per share at the time of redemption.

The Fund is registered as an issuer of securities with the SEC under Section 12 of the Securities
Regulation Code (SRC). The Fund's track record of securities registration is shown in Note 6.

The Fund’s registered office address, which is also its principal place of business, is located at
17F Philam Life Head Office, Net Lima Building, 5th Avenue corner 26th St., Bonifacio Global City,

Taguig 1634, Philippines.
The Fund has no employees.

Effective January 29, 2020, Philam Asset Management, Inc. (PAMI), a wholly-owned subsidiary of The
Philippine American Life and General Insurance Company (Philam Life) assigned all its rights, interests,
and obligations as fund manager, advisor, distributor, and transfer agent of the Fund to BPI Investment
Management, Inc. (BIMI), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI).
Henceforth, the management, distribution and transfer agency functions are performed by BIMI over the
Fund. Services, contracts and agreements are in force with BIMI at effective date.

Coronavirus pandemic

The pandemic which broke out in March 2020 forced governments all over the world, including the
Philippines, to implement community lockdowns and quarantines to mitigate the spread of the virus.
Unfortunately, these lockdowns caused the demands for goods and services to plummet which ultimately
led to the contraction of both global and domestic economies.

In response to the growing number of COVID-19 cases in the country, Republic Act (RA) No. 11469,
otherwise known as “Bayanihan to Heal as One Act” and Republic Act (RA) No. 11494, otherwise known as
“Bayanihan to Recover as One Act” (or collectively the “Bayanihan Acts”) were enacted in March 2020
which granted the President of the Republic of the Philippines additional powers to combat the pandemic
and aid certain vulnerable sectors of the economy.

Overall, the COVID-19 pandemic did not have a significant impact on the Fund’s results of operations,
financial position, and cash flows as at and for the year ended December 31, 2020, including its ability to
continie on as a going concern in the next 12 months after reporting date. While the pandemic still poses
some risk and uncertainties, the Fund, however, remains confident on its ahility to absorb some
conceivable financial shocks that may arise due to volatile economic conditions.

At reporting date, the pandemic remains the topmost concern of the government and businesses alike, The
Philippine economy is gradually opening with the impeosition of less stringent community quarantine
protocols. Likewise, the vaccination program of the government is expected to commence in 2021 which is
hoped to slow down the spread of the virus and boost confidence among businesses and consumers.



The financial statements have been approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on
May 14, 2021. There are no material subsequent events oceurred from May 14, 2021 up to May 17, 2021,
the audit report date.

2  Cash and cash equivalents

The account at December 31 consists of:

2020 2019 2018
Cash in banks 53,510 5,225 3,627
Short term deposits 178,208 142 502 296,801

231,716 147 727 300428

Cash in banks earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates.

Short term deposits in 2020 have average maturities of 32 days (2019 - 22 days; 2018 - 32 days) and
carry effective interest rates ranging from of 0.5% to 1.75% (2019 - 2.5% to 4%; 2018 - 6.25% to 7%).

Interest earned from cash and cash equivalents is disclosed in Note 7.
Cash and cash equivalents as at December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 are all classified as current.
3  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The account at December 31 consists of:

2020 2018
Government securities 343,403 634,725
Corporate securities 389 578 107 690
Unit investment trust funds 57,6858 5,918

800,839 748,333

Government securities and corporate bonds as at December 31, 2020 have average terms of 0.4 to
4.62 years and 0.03 to 4.32 years (2019 - 0.28 to 11.52 years and 0.18 to 5.31 years) and carry effective
interest rates of 2.63% to 15,00% and 2.5% to 6.8% (2019 - 3.50% to 15.00% and 4.51% to 7.06%),
respectively.

Movements in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are summarized as follows:

2020 2019
At January 1 748,333 236,678
Reclassification from investment securities at amortized cost - 120,444
Additions 2,341,116 751,289
Disposals (2,305,462) (390,605)
Fair value gains, net 18,987 21,615
Other movements (2,134) 8,914
At Decamber 31 800,839 748,333

In 2019, the Fund updated its assessment of the contractual cash flow characteristics and business model
under current circumstances and concluded to re-classify its financial assets at amortized cost to fair
value through profit or loss consistent with PFRS g requirement. Moreover, the current business model
is consistent with Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS). GIPS is ethics-based and
standardized guidelines that ensure fair representation and full disclosure in reporting investment
performance. Among the key requirements for adoption is to value financial assets at fair value, At
January 1, 2019, the total amount of investment securities at amortized cost amounting to P120,444 is
reclassified to financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which resulted to a P3 fair value gain.
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The composition of income from financial assets at FVTPL, net for the year ended December a1 are as
follows:

2020 2019

Interest income on financial assets at FVTPL 39,760 24,890
Other changes on financial assets at FVTPL

Net realized fair value gains 16,845 7121

Unrealized fair value gains 2,142 14,494

58,747 46 805

Financial assets at FVTPL are considered held for trading and classified as current assets,
4  Other financial assets at amortized cost

The account at December 31, 2020 consists of accrued interest from term deposits amounting to P188
(2019 - Pa22).

Other financial assets at amortized cost as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are expected to be collected in
the next 12 months and classified as current assets.

5  Accounts payable and accrued expenses

The account at December 31 consists of:

2020 2018

Accounts payable 42 6871 4,738

Accrued expenses 567 430
43,238 5169

Accounts payable include withholding taxes, documentary stamp tax payable, other payables and payable
to investors due to redemptions that have been contracted for but not yet settled as at reporting date.

Accrued expenses mainly represent aceruals for transfer charges, legal fees, marketing and
administration fees.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Fund’s accounts payable and acerued expenses are expected to be
paid in the next 12 months and classified as current liabilities.

[ Net assets atiributable to shareholders

On April 5, 2018, the BOD approved an increase in the Fund's authorized capital from 100,000,000
shares to 702,876,600 shares at Po.o1 par value, inereasing the authorized capital from P1,000,000 to
P7,028,766. On December 18, 2018, an application for an increase in authorized capital stock was filed
with the SEC, On various dates in 2018, the Fund received cash from certain investors as deposits for
future stock subscriptions for 455,701,700 shares amounting to P538,504 which was presented as part of
equity as at December 31, 2018 in accordance with the guidelines set by the SEC.

In 2019, the Fund received cash from certain investors as deposits for future subscriptions amounting to
P227,858, for 154,190,712 shares. The amount of P219,041 for 147,174,900 shares of these depaosits for
future subscriptions had been taken up as part of equity in accordance with the guidelines set by the SEC.
The remaining amount of P8,817 for 7,015,812 shares was presented as part of liabilities, pending the
filing of the additional increase in authorized capital stock with the SEC as of December 91, 2019,

The application for the increase in authorized share capital is still awaiting approval of the SEC as at
December 31, 2020 and zo10.
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In 2020, the Fund received cash from certain investors as deposit for future subseription amounting to
P51,112 for 39,655,047 shares was presented as part of liabilities, pending the filing of additional
increased in authorized capital stock with the SEC. The total deposit for future subscription that is
presented as part of liabilities as of December 31, 2020 amounts to P59,929 (2019 - P8.817).

The details of the net assets attributable to shareholders at December 31 are as follows:

2020 2019 2018
Share capital - P0.01 par value
Authorized - 100,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding 1,000 1,000 1,000
Share premium 56,202 60,422 84,086
Deposit for future subscriptions 757,635 757,635 538,594
Retained earnings 115,579 64,252 23,096
830,416 BB3,309 656,756

The movements in the number of issued and outstanding shares are as follows (in absolute number of
shares):

2020 2018 2018
Issued and outstanding, January 1 100,000,000 100,000,000 98,254,810
lssuances of shares 378246 108 222771872  182,175.357
Redemptions of shares (378,246,108) (222.771,872) (160,430,267)
Issued and outstanding, December 31 100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000

The movements in the amount of issued and outstanding shares follow:

2020 2018 2018
Share Share Share Share Share Share
capital premium capital premium capital premium
At January 1 1,000 60,422 1,000 94 068 883 100,986
Issuance of shares 3,782 480,038 2,228 235,300 1,821 178,806
Redemptions of shares (3,782) (484.,258) (2,228) (268 044) (1,604) (185.836)
At December 31 1,000 58,202 1,000 60,422 1,000 94 066

As at December 31, 2020, the Fund has 593 shareholders (2019 - 2,081 shareholders).

The Fund computes its NAV per share by dividing the net assets attributable to shareholders, including
deposits for future subscriptions classified as liability, if any, as at reporting date by the number of issued
and outstanding shares during the year, including shares for issuances covered by deposits for future
subscriptions (DFFS). The total equity as shown in the statement of financial position represents the
Fund’s NAV based on Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS NAV).

Issue or offer price is equivalent to the NAV per share at the time of issuance.

A reconciliation of the Fund'’s Trading NAV to PFRS NAV is provided below:

2020 2019 2018
Trading NAV 980,345 B892 126 B56, 756
DFFS (59,929) (8.817) ;
PFRS NAV 930,416 883,300 656,756
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NAV per share as at December 31 is as follows:

2020 2018 2018
Net assets attributable to shareholders 880,345 802,126 656,756
Number of shares outstanding, including shares for
DFFS (in thousands) 749,548 708,892 555,702
NAV per share 1.3213 1.2567 1.1818

As disclosed in Note 1, the Fund is an open-end investment company which stands ready at any time to
redeem its outstanding shares at a value defined under its prospectus. Any changes in the value of the
shareholders’ investment are reflected in the increase or decrease in the Fund’s NAV.

The Fund'’s retained earnings may exceed 100% of its paid-up capital from time to time. This, however, is
not construed as a compelling factor for the Fund to declare dividends considering the nature of the
Fund’s business. Such retained earnings may be used for reinvestment and will be converted into realized
profits by the shareholders upon redemption of their shareholdings in the Fund.

Earnings per share for the years ended December 31 are computed as follows:

2020 2018 2018
Net income far the year 51,327 41,1586 11,358
Weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year (in thousands) 654,987 1,110,376 430,519
Earnings per share 0.0784 0.0371 0.0264

In compliance with the SRC, the Fund is required to file registration statement for each instance of
increase in authorized shares. The table below shows the Fund’s track record of registration of securities
under the SRC (in absolute amounts).

SEC approval date Number of shares Par value
February 27, 2008 100,000,000 P0.01

7 Interest income

The details of the account for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2020 2018 2018
Cash and cash equivalents 5,031 3,808 12,043
Investment securities at amortized cost - - 4,537

5,031 3,808 16,580

8  Fees and other charges

The details of the account for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Notes 2020 2019 2018
Professional fees 458 457 457
Registry and transfer fees 513 342 271
Administration fees 282 188 149
Directors' fees 153 153 153
Fees to custodian bank 58 23 23
1,462 1,163 1,053

Professional fees pertain to amounts paid to third party service providers.
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Registry and transfer charges pertain to the fees paid to the transfer agent for the record keeping of
individual shareholdings and the issuance and cancellation of stock certificates.

Administration fees are the amounts paid to the Fund's accountant for services rendered which include,
among others, the preparation and maintenance of books of accounts and computation of NAV.

+] Income tax

Income tax expense mainly represents final tax withheld on interest earned from cash and cash
equivalents and fixed-income securities.

Details of the Fund's net operating loss carry over (NOLCO) which is available for offset against future
taxable income follow:

Year of incurrence Year of expiration 2020 2019 2018
2020 2023 5,087 - -
2019 2022 3,502 3,802 -
2018 2021 72 72 72
2017 2020 162 162 162
2018 2019 - 1131 1,131
8,803 4 867 1,365
Expired NOLCO (162) (1,131) (678)
Utilized NOLCO - - (453)
8,641 3,736 234
Income tax rate 30% 30% 30%
Unrecognized deferred income tax asset 2,592 1.121 70

Deferred income tax asset from NOLCO has not been recognized because the Fund believes that there is
limited capacity to generate sufficient taxable profit against which the benefit from NOLCO can be
utilized.

The reconciliation of the income tax expense computed at statutory income tax rate to effective income
tax expense follows;

2020 2019 2018

Income tax at statutory tax rate of 20% 30.00%, 20.00% 30.00%
Adjustments for tax effects of:

Income subject to other tax rates (7.99%) (6.10%) (7.680%)

Income exempt from tax (12.51%) (13.83%) 3.82%

Unrecognized NOLCO 2.60% 2.24% -

Utilization of NOLCO - - (0.88%)
Effective income tax expense 12.10% 12.31% 25.34%

10 Related party transactions

The Fund has a management and distribution agreement with PAMI, wherehy the latter is appointed as
the Fund’s investment advisor and manager. PAMI also functions as the principal distributor of the
Fund. As such, it takes charge of the sales of the Fund’s shares to prospective investors. Under this
arrangement, PAMI pays certain expenses on behalf of the Fund. The Fund has also entered into a
registry and transfer agency agreement with PAMI,

Effective January 29, 2020, PAMI assigned all its rights, interests, and obligations as fund manager, advisor,
distributor, and transfer agent of the Fund to BIML Hence, on effective date, the management, distribution,
and transfer agency functions are performed by BIMI over the Fund.
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The table below summarizes the Fund’s transactions and balances with its fund manager.

Cutstanding
Transactions balance
(Charges to {Due to fund Outstanding balance's
profit or loss) manager) terms and conditions
Management fees
December 31, 2020 2,694 181 - Management fee is computed as
December 31, 2019 1,817 175 one-forty eighth (1/48) of one percent
December 31, 2018 1,517 175 (1%) of the average NAV of the Fund
per year determined on a daily basis
= Qutstanding balance is
unguaranteed, unsecured and non-
interest bearing; settled in cash at
gross amount within the following
month
Registry and transfer fees
December 31, 2020 513 - - Registry and transfer fee is computed
December 31, 2019 342 a5 as one-twentieth (1/20) of one percent
December 31, 2018 271 28 (19%) of the NAV per year determined

on a daily basis

- Outstanding balance is unguaranteed,
unsecured and non-interest bearing;
settled in cash at gross amount within
the following month

11 Fund accounting services

On July 1, 2008, the Fund and Deutsche Bank entered into a fund accounting agreement wherein
Deutsche Bank shall perform administrative functions, which include, among others, the preparation
and maintenance of books of accounts and computation of NAV. As compensation for services rendered,
Deutsche Bank shall be entitled to an administration fee equivalent to 0.0275% per annum based on the
NAV of the Fund.

Administration fees for the year ended December 31, 2020 amount to P282 (2019 - P188; 2018 - P149)
and is included under Fees and other charges in the statement of total comprehensive income (Note 8).
As at December 31, 2020, administration fees payable to Deutsche Bank included in Accounts payable
and accrued expenses amount to P7o (2019 - P37) (Note 5).

12 Critical accounting estimate and judgments

Estimates, assumptions and judgments used in préparing the financial statements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The accounting estimate and
judgments that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial vear are discussed below.
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12.1 Critical accounting judgments
Recognition of deferred income tax asset (Note g)

Deferred income tax asset from NOLCO has not been recognized because the Fund believes that there is
limited capacity to generate sufficient taxable profit against which the benefit from NOLCO can be
utilized. The Fund assesses the unrecognized deferred income tax asset and will recognize a previously
unrecognized deferred income tax asset to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
income will allow the deferred income tax asset to be recovered.

Classification of financial assets (Notes 2, 3 and 4)

The Fund follows the guidance of PFRS g in classifying financial assets at initial recognition whether it
will be subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, at amortized cost, or
at fair value through profit or loss. The Fund determines the classification based on the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets and on the business model it uses to manage these financial
assets. The Fund determines whether the contractual cash flows associated with the financial asset are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI). If the instrument fails the SPPI test, it will be measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

12.2 Critical accounting estimate
Estimation of expected credit loss for financial assets

The measurement of expected credit loss (ECL) for the Fund's financial assets at amortized cost is an
area that requires the use of significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit
behavior (e.g., impact of unemployment rates on the eredit risk of a counterparty and the likelihood of
counterparties defaulting).

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting requirements for
measuring ECL, such as:

Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;
Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL:

* Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each portfolio and
the associated ECL; and

* Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

The details on the credit quality of the Fund’s financial assets are detailed in Note 13.6.
13  Capital and financial risk management
13.1 Governance framework

The primary objective of the Fund’s financial risk management framework is to protect the Fund from
events that hinder the sustainable achievement of the Fund's performance objectives, including failing to
exploit opportunities. The Fund recognizes the eritical importance of having efficient and effective risk
management systems in place.

The BOD has approved the Fund's risk management policies and meets regularly to approve on any
commercial, regulatory and own organizational requirements in such policies. The policies define the Fund’s
identification of risk and its interpretation, limit structure to ensure the appropriate quality and
diml'siﬂcaﬁun of assets, alignment of investment strategy to the corporate goals and specific reporting
requirements.
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13.2 Capital management

The Fund'’s objectives for managing capital are: (a) to invest the capital in investments meeting the
description and risk exposure indicated in its prospectus; (b) to achieve consistent returns while
safeguarding capital; and (c) to maintain sufficient liquidity to meet the expenses of the Fund and to meet
redemption requests as they arise.

As provided by the Investment Company Act of 1960, the minimum required capitalization for funds
amounts to P50 million. The Fund's capitalization is more than the requirement of the SEC.

The Fund considers the net assets attributable to shareholders as its capital (or total equity as shown in
the statement of financial position). As at December 31, 2020, the net assets attributable to shareholders
amount to P930,416 (2019 - PB83,300).

13.3 Regulatory framework

The operations of the Fund are also subject to the regulatory requirements of the SEC. Such regulations not
only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities but also impose certain restrictive provisions. Unless
ordered otherwise by the SEC, the Fund shall not sell securities short or invest in any of the following:

margin purchase of securities (investments in partially paid shares are excluded);
commaodity future contracts;

precious metals;

unlimited lability investments;

short selling of currencies;

short selling of investments; and

other investments as the SEC shall, from time to time, prescribe.

e e o

Any changes in the Fund’s investment objective should be with notice and prior approval of the SEC. An
investment company shall not change its investment objective without the approval from the majority of the
Fund's shareholders.

In addition, the SEC also provides maximum limits on exposure to counterparties, maintenance of a certain
level of liquid assets and conditions for incurring borrowings (Note 13.6 - Credit risk).

The Fund is fully compliant with the above regulatory requirements as at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
13.4 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Fund ranks its financial instruments based on the hierarchy of valuation techniques required by
PFRSs, which is determined based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are obhservable or
unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources: unobservable
inputs reflect the Fund’s market assumptions. These two types of inputs lead to the following fair value

hierarchy:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Habilities. This level includes
listed equity securities,

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs). This level includes equity investments and debt instruments with significant
unobservable components.
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This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. The Fund considers relevant
and observable market prices in its valuations where possible.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety
is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in
its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment hased
on unohservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a
particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgement, considering factors
specific to the asset,

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgement by the Fund. The Fund
considers observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed ar
updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively
involved in the relevant market,

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from the
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis,

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on
quoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are
classified within Level 2.

Financial instruments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade
infrequently.

The table below sets forth the fair values of the following financial assets as at December 33

2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL - 800,838 - 800,839
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL - T48 333 - 748,333

The fair values of investments in fixed-income securities and unit investment trust funds under financial
assets at FVTPL are all classified under Level 2.

Any changes in the Fund’s investment objective should be with notice and prior approval of the SEC. An
investment company shall not change its investment objective without the approval from the majority of the
Fund's shareholders.

In addition, the SEC also provides maximum limits on exposure to counterparties, maintenance of a certain
level of liquid assets and conditions for incurring borrowings (Note 13.6).

The Fund has no financial assets that fall under the Level 1 and 3 categories. There are no other assets or
liabilities that are subsequently measured at fair value or that would require disclosure of fair value
hierarchy.

13.5 Offsetting financial assets and liabilities
As at December 31, 2020, due from and to fund manager is subject to offsetting. The gross amount of due
from fund manager amounts to P419 (2019 - P313) while the gross amount of due to fund manager set off

in the statement of financial position amounts to P182 (2019 - P210). The net amount presented as part
of other assets in the statement of financial position is P237 (2019 - P103).
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13.6 Financial risk

The Fund may invest in SEC-registered debt papers or other certificate of indebtedness/obligations,
issuers of whom had been determined as financially sound and approved by the Investment Committes
of the fund manager. The Fund does not plan to invest in foreign securities, However, SEC allows mutual
fund companies to invest up to one hundred percent (100%) of its net assets in foreign securities subject
to safety nets and standards set by the SEC.

The Fund is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets. The most important components are
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, These risks arise from open positions in interest rate securities,
all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

The Fund manages the level of credit risk it accepts through setting up of exposure limits by each
counterparty or group of counterparties. The maximum investment of the Fund in any single enterprise
shall not exceed an amount equivalent to fifteen percent (15%) of the Fund’s NAV except obligations of
the Philippine government or its instrumentalities, provided that in no case shall the total investment of
the Fund exceed ten percent (10%) of the outstanding securities of any one investee company. The Fund
also transacts only with institutions with high credit rating or standing. The Fund has complied with
these requirements as at December 31, 2020 and 2019,

In addition, the Fund manages the level of credit risk it accepts through reporting of credit risk
exposures, monitoring compliance with credit risk policy and review of credit risk policy for pertinence
and changing environment. The Fund cannot lend to individual borrowers.

The fund manager’s high-grade credit process combines top down and bottom up elements reflecting the
observation that the weaker the credit quality, the more security specific risk comes to dominate overall
portfolio risk. The bottom up element focuses on the analysis of individual credits, The top down element
focuses on the analysis of sectors. In order to manage rigk, the high-grade portfolios combine
diversification rules with a number of filters designed to help avoid downgrade and default candidates.
Key to the Fund'’s credit process is the minimization of the impact from security default or downgrade.

The Fund’s maximum credit risk exposure as at December 31 are summarized below:

.y 2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents 231,718 147,727
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BOD B35 748333
Cther financial assets at amortized cost 188 222
Due from fund manager 237 103

1,032,980 B9G, 385

As at December 31, 2020, all of the Fund’s financial assets are classified as stage 1 (performing) accounts,
There are no financial assets classified under stages 2 (underperforming) and stage 3 (impaired).

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with universal banks to minimize credit risk exposure, The
other financial assets consisting of investment in fixed income securities and recejvables are considered

by the Fund as having investment grade credit quality, wherein the counterparties are assessed to

]possess strong to very strong capacities to meet their obligations; thus, credit risk is assessed to be very
OW.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, there are no past due or impaired financial assets. There are no
collaterals held as security and other credit enhancements attached to the loans and receivables.
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The Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure at default
and loss given default. Management considers both historieal analysis and forward-looking information
in determining any expected credit loss. Management considers the probability of default to be close to
zero as the counterparties have a strong capacity to meet their contractual obligation in the near term.
Loss allowance has been recognized based on 12-maonth expected credit losses,

Expected credit loss (ECL) measurement

PFRS g outlines a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial
recognition as summarized below:

* Afinancial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is classified in ‘Stage 1' and has
its credit risk continuously monitored by the Fund.

» Ifasignificant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to ‘Stage 2’ but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired,
If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to ‘Stage 3°.
Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime
ECL that result from default events possible within the next 12 months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3
have their ECL measured based on ECL on a lifetime basis.

* Apervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with PFRS g is that it should consider forward-
locking information.

* Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial assets that are eredit-
impaired on initial recognition. Their ECL is measured on a lifetime hasis (Stage 3).

ECL is applied to financial assets at amortized cost.
SICR

The Fund has aligned its SICR eriteria with the presumption indicated within PFRS 9; that is, the credit
risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due. Also, the Fund considers investment downgrade of two notches as an indicator
of SICR.

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Fund defines a financial instrument as in default, which is fully aligned with the definition of credit-
impaired, when it meets one or more of the following criteria:

The counterparty meets unlikeliness to pay criteria, which indicates the counterparty is in significant
financial difficulty. These are instances where:

The counterparty is in long-term forbearance;

The counterparty is dissolved;

The counterparty is insolvent;

The counterparty is in breach of financial covenant(s);

An active market for that financial asset has disappeared because of financial difficulties;
Concessions have been made by the creditor relating to the counterparty’s financial difficulty:

It is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter bankruptey; or

Financial assets are purchased or originated at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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CQuantitative criteria

The Fund has applied the presumption indicated within PFRS g pertaining to the default definition: that is,
default of a financial instrument does not occur later than when a financial asset is more than 9o days past
due,

The criteria above has been applied to all financial instruments held by the Fund and are consistent with
the definition of default used for internal eredit risk management purposes. The default definition has been
applied consistently to model the Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD), and Loss Given
Default (LGD) throughout the Fund's expected credit loss caleulation.

An instrument is considered to no longer be in default (i.e. to have been cured) when it no longer meets any
of the default criteria for a consecutive period of six months.

Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation technigues

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month (12M) or a lifetime basis depending on whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to be credit-
impaired. The ECL is the discounted product of the PD, EAD, and LGD, defined as follows:

¢ The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as per “Definition
of defaunlt and credit-impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (12M PD), or over the remaining
lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

* EAD is based on the amounts the Fund expects to be owed at the time of default, over the next 12
months (12M EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime EAD).

* LGD represents the Fund's expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. It is expressed as a
percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of default,

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, EAD, and LGD for each future year and for each individual
exposure or collective segment. These three components are multiplied together, and then discounted back
to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the original effective
interest rate or an approximation thereof,

ECL is applied to financial assets at amortized cost.
Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL model

The caleulation of ECL incorporates forward-looking information. The Fund has performed historical
analysis and identified the key economic variables affecting credit risk and ECL for each portfolio (i.e.
unemployment rate). This economic variable and its associated impact on the likelihood of default vary hy
financial instrument. Expert judgment has also been applied in this process. Forecasts of this economic
variable are based on the economie data from the Philippine Statistics Authority (PSA). The impact of this
economic variable on the ECL model has been determined by performing statistical regression analysis to
understand the impact that changes in this variable have had historically on the counterparty’s default
rates,

As with any economic forecast, the projections used within the ECL calculation are subject to a hi gh degree
of inherent uncertainty and therefore the actual outeomes may be significantly different to those projected.
The Fund considers this in its eredit risk management and would continue to govern these processes
closely.

Liguidity risk
Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from either the inability to

sell financial assets quickly at their fair values; or counterparty failing on repayment of a contractual
obligation; or inability to generate cash inflows as anticipated.
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The Fund is exposed to daily cash redemptions of its issued shares. It therefore invests the majority of its
assets in investments that are traded in an active market and can be readily disposed of.

The Fund manages liquidity through specifying minimum proportion of funds to meet emergency calls.
Unless otherwise prescribed by the SEC, at least ten percent (10%) of the Fund shall be invested in
liquid/semi-liquid assets such as:

a. Treasury notes or bills, certificates of indebtedness issued by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas which
are short term, and other government securities or bonds and such other evidence of indebtedness or
obligations, the servicing and repayment of which are fully guaranteed by the Republic of the
Philippines;

b. Tradable Long-Term Negotiable Certificate of Time Deposits (LTNCDs);

¢. Government debt securities where the issuer or the guarantor is a foreign government, sovereign or
central bank with an international long-term issuer rating of investment grade;

d. Savings or time deposits with government-owned banks or commercial banks, provided that in no
case shall any such savings or time deposits accounts be accepted or allowed under a “bearer,”
“numbered” account or other similar arrangement;

e. Money market instruments issued by Philippine regulated qualified buyers or those issued by an
investment grade issuing body; and,

f. Other collective schemes wholly invested in liquid/semi-liquid assets.

The Fund has complied with these requirements as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

The Fund may not incur any further debt or borrowings unless at the time of its occurrence or
immediately thereafter, there is an asset coverage of at least 300% for all its borrowings. In the event
that such asset coverage shall fall below 300%, the Fund shall, within three days thereafter, reduce the
amount of borrowings to an extent that the asset coverage of such borrowings shall be at least 300%. The
Fund has not breached the said asset coverage requirement as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

In addition, the Fund manages liquidity through reporting of liquidity risk exposures, monitoring
compliance with liquidity risk policy and review of liquidity rik policy for pertinence and changing
environment,

The table below analyzes the assets and liabilities of the Fund into their relevant maturity groups using
undiscounted amounts based on the remaining period at the reporting date to their contractnal
maturities or expected repayment dates.

At December 31, 2020 Up to a year 1-5 years Over 5 years Mo term Total
Cash and cash equivalents 231,716 - - - 231,716
Financial assets at FWVTPL

Government securities - 343 403 - - 343,403

Corporate securities - 399,578 - - 389,578

Unit investment trust funds - - - 57,858 57 B58
Other financial assets at

amortized cost 188 - - - 188

Other asszets 840 - - - 840
Total financial assets 232,744 742 981 - 57,858 1,033,683
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses
(excluding taxes payable) 42,082 - - - 42,082
Total financial liabilities 42 082 - - - 42,082
Met liguidity risk exposure 180,662 742 681 - 57 .B58 g981,501
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At December 31, 2019 Uptoayear  1-5years Over 5 years Noterm  Total

Cash and cash equivalents 147,727 - - - 147,727
Financial assets at FWVTPL

Government securities 20,218 521,124 93,383 - 634,725
Corporate securities 43,157 61,001 3,532 - 107,880
Unit investment trust funds - - - 5,918 5,918
Other financial assets at

amortized cost 222 - - - 223

Other assets 1,013 - - - 1,013
Total financial assets 212.337 582 125 96,915 5918 897 295
Accounts payable and

accrued expenses

(excluding taxes payable) 3,394 - - - 3,384
Tofal financial liabilities 3,384 - - - 3,394
Net liquidity risk exposure 208,843 582 125 96,915 5918 893,901

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of change in fair value of financial instruments from fluctuation in foreign
exchange rates (currency risk), interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices (price risk), whether
such change in price is caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or factors
atfecting all instruments traded in the market.

The Fund structures levels of market risk it accepts through a market risk policy that determines what
constitutes market risk for the Fund; basis used to fair value financial assets and liabilities; sets out the
net exposure limits by each counterparty or group of counterparties and industry segments; reporting of
market risk exposures; monitoring compliance with market risk policy and review of market risk poliey
for pertinence and changing environment.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Fund holds no investment in and does not plan to invest in foreign securities. However, SEC allows
mutual fund companies to invest up to 100% of its net assets in foreign securities subject to safety nets
and standards set by the SEC. The transactions of the Fund are carried out in its functional currency,
hence, it is not exposed to currency risk.

Fair ] rate risk

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value/future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Fund’s market risk policy requires it to manage the maturities of interest bearing financial assets and
financial liabilities.

The following table shows the information relating to the Fund's investments in fixed income securities
that are exposed to fair value interest rate risk presented by maturity profile.

Uptoa Over
December 31, 2020 Rangeofrates year 1-5years GSyears Noterm  Total
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 263 -15.00% - 742,981 - 57,858 B00.839
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Up to Over

December 31, 2019 Rangeofrates ayear 1-5years S5Syears Noterm  Total
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 3.50 - 15.00% 63,375 582125 0B,915 5,818 748,333

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in interest rate with all other
variables held constant, showing the impact on pre-tax profit.

Change in Impact on pre-tax profit
interest rate Increase (decrease)

December 31, 2020 +1% (15,728)

-1% 18,378
December 31, 2018 +1% (19,317}

-1% 20,232
December 31, 2018 +1% (7.136)

-1% 1,310

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Fund determines the reasonable possible change in interest rates
using the percentage changes in weighted average yield rates of outstanding securities for the past three
years,

Cash flow interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Fund is not exposed to cash flow interest rate risk given
that other interest-bearing financial assets have fixed interest and are carried at amortized cost,

Price risk
Price risk relates to financial assets and liabilities whose values will fluctuate as a result of changes in

market prices, principally of equity securities. The Fund has no exposure to equity price risk as it does
not hold investments in equity securities as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

14 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

14.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS). The term PFRS, in general, includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS) and interpretations of the Philippine Interpretations Committee (PIC),
Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) which have been approved by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) and
adopted by the SEC.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Fund’s accounting policies. The area involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements is disclosed in Note 12,
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Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Fund

The following new standards have been adopted by the Fund effective January 1, 2020:
s Definition of Material —~Amendments to PAS 1 and PAS 8

The amendments to PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and PAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors which use a consistent definition of materiality
throughout International Financial Reporting Standards and the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting, clarify when information is material and incorporate some of the guidance in
IAS 1 about immaterial information.

In particular, the amendments clarify:

+ that the reference to obscuring information addresses situations in which the effect is similar
to omitting or misstating that information, and that an entity assesses materiality in the
context of the financial statements as a whole, and

» the meaning of ‘primary users of general-purpose financial statements’ to whom those
financial statements are directed, by defining them as ‘existing and potential investors,
lenders and other creditors’ that must rely on general purpose financial statements for much
of the financial information they need.

The said amendment does not have a material impact on the Fund’s financial statements.

» Interest rate benchmark reform — Amendment to PFRS 7, PFRS 9 and PAS 39
The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting requirements to provide certain reliefs in
connection with interest rate benchmark reform, The reliefs relate to hedge accounting and have the
effect that IBOR reform should not generally cause hedge accounting to terminate. However, any
hedge ineffectiveness should continue to be recorded in the income statement. Given the pervasive
nature of hedges involving IBOR-based contracts, the reliefs will affect companies in all industries.

The said amendment does not have a material impact on the Fund’s financial statements.

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted

There are no other standard, amendment or interpretation that are not yet effective at

December 31, zo20 and onwards that are considered relevant and are expected to have a material impact

on the financial statements of the Fund.

14.2 Financial instruments

14.2.1 Classification and subsequent measurement

The Fund has applied PFRS g and classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and

at amortized cost.

The classification requirements for equity and debt instruments are described below:

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuer’s

perspective, such as loans, government and corporate bonds and trade receivables purchased from
clients in factoring arrangements without recourse.
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Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on the Fund's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on these factors, the Fund classifies its debt instruments into one of the following measurement
categories:

s Amaortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI), and that are not designated at fair value
through profit or loss, are measured at amortized cost. The carrying amount of these assets is
adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance recognized and measured. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in ‘Interest income’ using the effective interest rate method.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Fund's amortized cost financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents, and other receivables.

s Financial assets at FVOCT

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated
at FVTPL, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses on the
instrument’s amortized cost which are recognized in the statement of total comprehensive income.
When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Fund has no financial assets under the FVOCI category.

* Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI and the collection of
contractual cash flows is only incidental to achieving the Fund's business model objective are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt securities that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized in
profit or loss and presented in the statement of total comprehensive income under Fair value gains
(losses), net on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

The Funds financial assets at FVTPL as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 consists of government
securities, corporate securities, and investments in unit investment trust funds.

Business model: The business model reflects how the Fund manages the financial assets in order to
generate cash flows, That is, whether the Fund’s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows
from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of
financial assets. If neither of these is applicable, then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’
business model and measured at FVTPL. Factors considered by the Fund in determining the business
model for a group of financial assets include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were
collected, how the asset’s performance is evaluated and reported to key management personnel, how
rigks are assessed and managed and how managers are compensated.
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SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect
contractual cash flows and sell, the Fund assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest (the SPPI test). In making this assessment, the Fund
considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest
includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit
margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement, Where the contractual terms introduce
exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial
asset is classified and measured at FVTPL.

The Fund reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes, The reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following the
change. Such changes are expected to be very infrequent and none occurred during the period. At
January 1, 2019, the Fund reclassifies its debt investments from amortized cost to FVTPL measurement
category, in accordance with its change in business model.

Equity investments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer's perspective; that is,
instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the
issuer's net assets,

The Fund subsequently measures all equity investments at FVTPL, except where the Fund’s management has
elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, even on disposal, Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.
Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognized in profit or loss as
Dividend income when the Fund’s right to receive payments is established. Gains and losses on equity
investments at FVTPL or loss are included in the Fair value gains (losses), net on financial assets at FVTPL in
the statements of total comprehensive income.

The Fund does not have equity instruments as at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
14.2.2 Impairment
The Fund assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its deht

instrument assets carried at amortized cost. The Fund recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each
reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

* Anunbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes;
The time value of money; and
Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECL is applied to financial assets at amortized cost.
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Credit impaired financial assets (Investments - Stage 3)

Financial assets are assessed for credit impairment at each balance sheet date and more frequently when
circumstances warrant further assessment. Evidence of credit-impairment may include indications that
the debtor is experiencing significant financial difficulty, probability of bankruptey or other financial
reorganization, as well as measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows evidenced by the
adverse changes in the payments status of the debtor or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
An asset that is in Stage 3 will move back to Stage 2 when, as at reporting date, it is no longer considered
to be credit-impaired. The asset will transfer back to Stage 1 when its credit risk at the reporting date is
no longer considered to have increased significantly from initial recognition, and when there is sufficient
evidence to support full collection of principal and interest due. Prior to the transfer to Stage 1, the asset
should have exhibited both the quantitative and qualitative indicators of probable collection.

When a financial asset has been identified as credit-impaired, expected credit losses are measured as the
difference between the asset's gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the instrument’s original effective interest rate. For impaired financial assets with drawn
and unwithdrawn components, expected credit losses also reflect any credit losses related to the portion
of the loan commitment that is expected to be drawn down aver the remaining life of the instrument,

When a financial asset is credit impaired, interest ceases to be recognized on the regular accrual basis,
which accrues income based on gross carrying amount of the asset. Rather, interest income is caleulated
by applying the original effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the asset, which is the gross
carrying amount less related allowance for impairment. Following impairment, interest income is
recognized on the unwinding of the discount from the initial recognition of impairment.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, there are no credit-impaired financial assets.

Impairment of other financial assets

The Fund the applies the PFRS g simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for other financial assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, other financial assets have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of
receivables over a period of 36 month before December 31, 2020 and 2019 respectively and
corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this periods. The forward-locking information
on macroeconomic factors are considered insignificant in calenlating impairment of other financial
assets.

The Fund’s other financial assets primarily composed of cash and cash equivalents and other financial
assets at amortized cost are not impaired as at December 31, 2020 and 2019,

14.2.3 Date of recognition

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Fund
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace are recognized on the trade date.

14.2.4 Initial recognition of financial assets

Financial assets not carried at FVTPL are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs.

Financial assets carried at FVTPL are initially recognized at fair value, and transaction costs are
recognized as expense in profit or loss.
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14.2.5 Day 1 profit

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other observable
current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable market, the Fund recognizes the difference between the transaction
price and fair value (a “Day 1" profit) in profit or logs unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type
of asset. In cases where variables are made of data which are not observable, the difference between the
transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss when the inputs become observable
or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Fund determines the appropriate
method of recognizing the Day 1 profit amount.

14.2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

14.2.7 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
The Fund classifies its financial liabilities at FVTPL or as other financial liabilities at amortized cost.
Other financial linbilities at amortized cost

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated as financial liabilities at
FVTPL are classified as other financial liabilities, where the substance of the contractual arrangement
results in the Fund having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or
to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Fund's own equity shares.

Financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value
plus transaction costs.

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

This accounting policy applies to Accounts payable and accrued expenses (excluding taxes payable).
14.2.8 Derecognition of financial assets and labilities

Financial asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognized where:

The right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

¢ The Fund retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay
them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or

¢ The Fund has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Fund has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred eontrol of the asset, the
asset is recognized to the extent of the Fund’s continuing involvement in the asset.
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Financial liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation is discharged, or is cancelled or has expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

14.2.9 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforeeable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the company or the counterparty.

Refer to Note 13.5 for the details of financial assets and liabilities that have been offset,
14.2 Other assets

Other assets are recognized in the event that payments have been made in advance of obtaining right of
access to good or receipt of services and measured at nominal amounts. These are derecognized from the
statement of financial position upon delivery of goods or services, through amortization over a period of
time, and use of consumption.

Other assets are included in current assets, except when the related goods or services are expected to be
received or rendered more than twelve (12) months after the reporting period, which are then classified
as non-current assets,

14.4 Share capital

The Fund issues shares, which are redeemable at the holder’s option and are classified as equity in
accordance with PAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation. Each share has the following features
which support the equity classification:

¢ Itentitles the holder to a pro rata share of the Fund's net assets in the event of the entity’s
liquidation;

*  The share has no priority over other claims to the assets of the fund on liquidation, and it does not
need to be converted into another instrument before it is classified as such: and

» f}ll sléares impose a contractual obligation on the Fund to deliver a pro rata share of its net assets on
iquidation,

In addition, the Fund has no other financial instrument or contract that has:

* total cash flows based substantially on profit or loss, the change in the recognized net assets or the
change in the fair value of the recognized and unrecognized net assets of the Fund (excludin g any
effects of such instrument or contract); and

 the effect of substantially restricting or fixing the residual return to the shareholders.

Should the redeemable shares’ terms or conditions change such that they do not comply with the strict
criteria as mentioned above, the redeemable shares would be reclassified to a financial liability from the
date the instrument ceases to meet the criteria. The financial liability would be measured at the
instrument’s fair value at the date of reclassification. Any difference between the carrying value of the
equity instrument and fair value of the liability on the date of reclassification would be recognized in

equity.
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Redeemable shares can be put back to the Fund at any time for cash equal to a propaortionate share of the
Fund’s trading NAV calculated in accordance with the Fund’s regulations. Redeemed shares are not
cancelled but may be reissued in the future,

Share premium

Sales of shares are recorded by crediting Share capital at par value and Share premium for the amount
received in excess of the par value; redemptions are recorded by debiting those accounts. In the event
that the Share premium balance is exhausted as a result of redemptions, the Retained earnings account is
reduced by redemptions in excess of par.

Retained earnings
Retained earnings represent the accumulated surplus of the Fund as at reporting date.
Depuosits for future subscription

Deposits for future subscriptions represent funds received by the Fund with a view to applying the same
as payment for a future additional issuance of shares either from its authorized but unissued shares, from
a proposed increase in authorized share capital, or as share premium. Upon application with the SEC, the
amount will be credited to equity while upon the SEC's approval, the amount is transferred to Share
capital for the par value of the shares and Share premium for the amount in excess of the par value.

Based on SEC Bulletin No. 6, issued in January 2013, the Fund shall classify deposit for future share
subscription as equity if and only if, all of the following are present at the end of the reporting period:

(a) The unissued authorized share capital is insufficient to cover the amount of shares indicated in the
contract;

(b) There is BOD's approval on the proposed increase in authorized share capital (for which a deposit
was received);

(¢) There is stockholders’ approval of said proposed increase; and

(d) The application for the approval of the proposed increase has been filed with the SEC,

If the criteria above are not met, the deposits for share subseriptions will be presented as liabilities in the
statement of financial position.

14.5 Revenue recognition

Interest income

Interest income is presented gross of final tax and recognized on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the Fund reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flows discounted at original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and accretes the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired financial
asset carried at amortized cost is recognized using the original effective interest rate.

Other income

Other income is recognized when earned and when the Fund's right to receive payment is established.
14.6 Expenses

Expenses are recognized in the year in which they are incurred.
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14.7 NAV per share

NAV per share is computed by dividing the net assets attributable to shareholders, including deposits for
future subscriptions classified as liability, as at reporting date by the number of issued and outstanding
shares during the year including shares for issuances covered by deposits for future subscriptions.

14.8 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to shareholders of the Fund by
the weighted average number of shares outstanding and shares covered by deposits for future
subscriptions during the vear.

Diluted earnings per share is computed in the same manner as basic earnings per share, however, profit
attributable to shareholders and the weighted average number of shares are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential shares.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, there are no potentially dilutive shares.
14.0 Taxation

The Fund is domiciled in the Philippines. Under the existing tax laws of the Philippines, a documentary
stamp tax, inchaded under Taxes and licenses in profit or loss, is payable by the Fund on original issue
and subsequent sale or transfer of its redeemable shares,

The Fund has interest income from bank deposits and government securities which are subject to final
withholding tax. Such income is presented at gross amount and the related final tax is presented as part
of income tax expense in profit or loss.

14.10 Current and deferred income tax

Income tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively,

Current tax assets or labilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid at the end of reporting period. They
are calculated using the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based
on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a
component of income tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method on temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes. Under the liability method, with certain exceptions, deferred income tax liabilities
are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred income tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences and the earry-forward of unused tax losses (net operating loss carry
over or NOLCO) and unused tax credits (excess of minimum corporate income tax or MCIT) to the extent
th&lt it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deferred income tax asset can be
utilized.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized in full for all taxable temporary differences, except to the
extent that the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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The carrying amount of deferred income tax asset is reviewed at each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
income tax asset to be utilized. The Fund reassesses at each reporting date the need to recognize a
previously unrecognized deferred income tax asset. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled provided such tax rates have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

14.11 Related party relationships and transactions

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, direetly, or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, the other party or exercises significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Such relationship also exists between and/or among entities which are
under common control with the reporting enterprise, or between, and /or among the reporting enterprise
and its key management personnel, directors, or its shareholders. In considering each possible related party
relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

Related parties include: i) key management personnel, including directors; ii) entities that have the
ability to control or exercise significant influence over the Fund in making financial or operational
decisions; and iii) entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by parties
described in 1) and ii).

14.12 Functional and presentation currency

Subscriptions and redemptions of the Fund's redeemable shares are denominated in Philippine Peso.
The performance of the Fund is measured and reported to the investors in Philippine Peso, The BOD
considers the Philippine Peso as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the
underlying transactions, events and conditions. The financial statements are presented in Philippine
Peso, which is the Fund's funetional curreney.

The Fund is not engaged in any foreign currency transactions.
14.13 Events after the reporting date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Fund’s financial position at reporting
date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.

Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for Enterprises Act (CREATE)

On March 26, 2021, republic Act (RA) No. 11534, otherwise known as CREATE, was signed into law. Among
the salient provisions of CREATE that is applicable to the Fund include changes to the following:

1. Corporate income tax (CIT) rate shall be reduced to 25% beginning July 1, 2020 for domestic
corporations with total assets exceeding P1oo million;

2. Temporary reduction in the minimum CIT from 2% to 1% during the period from July 1, 2020 to
June 30, 2023. As at December 31, 2020, the CREATE bill is still pending ratification by both the
Philippine Congress and Senate, and consequently pending approval of the President of the Republic
of the Philippines.
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The Fund has assessed that the proposed tax law is not enacted or substantively enacted as at

December 31, 2020. Therefore, for financial reporting purposes, the enactment of CREATE after the
reporting date is deemed a non-adjusting subsequent event, The CREATE bill has no significant impact to
the Fund since the bulk of the Fund's income is tax-exempt or subject to final tax or other percentage tax.

15 Supplementary information required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)
Below is the additional information required by Revenue Regulations No. 15-2010 that is relevant to the
Fund. This information is presented for purposes of filing with the BIR and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements.

(i}  All other local and national taxes

All other local and national taxes paid and accrued for the vear ended December 31, 2020 consist of:

Paid Accrued Total
Municipal taxes 71 - ]
Documentary stamp tax 27 14 41
Community tax 11 - 11
109 14 123

The above local and national taxes are charged under Taxes and licenses account in the statement of total
comprehensive income.

(it} Withholding taxes

Withholding taxes paid and accrued for the vear ended December 31, 2020 consist of:

Paid Accrued Total
Expanded withholding tax 5,925 1,142 7,067

Accrued expanded withholding tax as at December 31, 2020 is included under Accounts payable and
accrued expenses in the statement of financial position.

(iii)  Tax assessments and cases

As at December 31, 2020, taxable years 2019, 2018 and 2017 are open for tax examinations.
There are no pending tax cases as at December 31, 2020,

(iv) Others

The Fund did not have transactions that are subject to value-added tax, excise taxes, and custom duties
and tariff for the vear ended December 31, 2020.
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Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc.
{An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)
17F Philam Life Head Office, Net Lima Building, 5th Avenue corner 26th St.,
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig 1634, Philippines

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings
Available for Dividend Declaration
As at December 31, 2020
{All amounts in thousands of Philippine Pesno)

' Unappropriated Retained Eamnings, as adjusted to available for dividend |

| distribution, beginning of the year ; 64,252
| Add: Net income actually earned/realized during the period
| Met income during the period closed to Retained Eamings 51,327

Less: Non-actuallunrealized income net of tax
+ Equity in net income of associatefoint venture
* Unrealized foreign exchange gain — after tax (except those atiributable to
Cash and Cash Equivalents) -
+ Fair value adjustment (mark to market gains) (2,142)
+ Fair value adjustment of Investment Property resulting to gain =
«  Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS - gain
Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained earnings as a result of
certain transactions accounted for under the PFRS

] Add: Non-actual losses

|+ Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax)
| » Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS ~ loss

* Loss on fair value adjustment of investment property (after tax) -

Net income actually earned during the period 49,185

Add/(Less): Non-actual losses
+ Dividend declaration during the period
+ Appropriation of Retained Earnings during the period
+ Reversals of appropriation
Effects of prior period adjustments
* Treasury shares

_Total Retained Earnings, end of the year available for dividend 113,437




Philam Managed Income Fund, Inec.
Schedule A - Finaneial Assets

December 31, 2020

(All amounts in Philippine Pesa)

Amount Value based on
Face value / shown in Market Quotation Income
Name of Issuing entity numbear of the financial at end of received and
and association of each issue shares statements  Reporting Period  accrued
Cash and cash equivalents
Time deposits
BPI TIME DEFOSIT 78,206,000 78,206,000 78,206,000 -
Land Bank of the Philippines TD 100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000 -
Cash in banks 53,510,017 53,510,017 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 231,718,017 231,716,017 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Corporate Securiiies
CB AC 6.80% DUE 12MAY21 5,000,000 5123873 5,077,505 45,278
CB ALl 5.625% DUE 25APR25 3,500,000 3,519,276 3483183 38,004
CB CHIB 01-21 CHIBFXBD2021 5.7% DUE ON 10JAN2021 24,600,000 24,656,924 24815128 81,785
CB CHIE 10-22 CHIBFXBD2022 2.75% DUE ON
220CT2022 §0,000,000 49,914 682 43,651,150 263,542
CB DBPF 2.5% DUE 11DEC2022 50,000,000 50,069,244 43,599 800 69,444
CB Metropolitan Bank&Trust 6.3% 11APR2022 50,000,000 53,086,650 52,366,650 700,000
CB RCBIFXBD2022 3.25% DUE 27JUL2022 50,000,000 50,748,738 50,457 850 288,880
CB SECB SECBFXBD2022 3.125% DUE ON 24JUL2022 100,000,000 101,302,697 100,721,100 581,597
CB SBTC COPPADSCS4E 5.875% 2TJUN2021 10,000,000 10,171,355 10,166 460 4,896
CB SMFEFXBD2025 5.05% DUE 10MARZS 15,000,000 14,683,303 14,635 115 44 188
CB SMPHO32025 4.8643% DUE ON 25MAR2025 25,000,000 26,253,562 25,929,275 324,287
LBP 2.5872% DUE 17NOV2022 PH_LBP171122 10,000,0000 10,028 241 0.897 620 31,621
383,100,000 399,577,557 387,104 827 2,472,630
Govemment Securiliss
FXTN 1054 PHYSST2FRCGE 6.375% DUE 18.JAN22 50,000,000 53,435,786 52,001,411 1,434,375
FXTN 20-2 PHYBST2EDM22 15% DUE 14MAR2022 10,000,000 11,741,843 11,295,810 445 833
GPN 21 UST18286BJ59 4,95% DUE 15JAN21 75,000,000 76,674,125 74,962 250 1,711,875
GB R513 PIIDO5S25H130 2.626% 12AUG2025 200,000,000 201,551,968 200,837,386 714,583
335,000,000 343 403 524 339,086,857 4,308 687
Unif Investment Trust Funds
ALFM PESO BOND FUND INC 81,955 30,411,042 20,411,042 -
_BPI MONEY MARKET FUND 105,372 27,447 262 27 447 252 -
187,327 57,858 204 57,858,284 -
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 800,639,375 800,838,375 26,770,207
Other financial assets at amaortized cost 188 342 188,342 -
Other assels B34 606 839,696 -
Total(s) 1,033,582430  1.033,583 430 26,779,297




Philam Managed Income Fund, Ine,
Schedule B - Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related
Parties, and Prineipal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)

December 31, 2020
Balance at Balance at
Name and designation  beginning Amount Amount end of
of debtor of period Additions collected written-off period

NOTHING TG REPORT




Philam Managed Income Fund, Ine.
Schedule C - Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated
during the Consolidation of Financial Statements
December 31, 2020

Name and Balance at Amount

Balance at
designation of beginning of Amount written- Non- end of
debtor period Additions collected off Current current period

MOT APPLICABLE




Philam Managed Income Fund, Ine,
Schedule D - Long-Term Debt
December 31, 2020

Amount shown in the
Title of issue and type of Amount authorized by statement of financial

obligation indenture position

NOTHING TO REPORT




Philam Managed Income Fund, Ine.
Schedule E - Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-Term Loans from Related
Companies)
As at December 31, 2020

Balance at beginning of
Name of related party period Balance at end of period

NOTHING TO REPORT




Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc.
Schedule F - Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers
December 31, 2020

Name of Issuing entity

of securities Title of issue of  Total amount Amount owned
guaranteed by the Fund each class of guaranteed by person for
for which this securities and which statement  Nature of
statement is filed guaranteed outstanding is filed guarantee

NOTHING TO REPORT




Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc.
Schedule G - Capital Stock
December 31, 2020

Number of shares Number of shares Number of
Number of issued and outstanding reserved for options,  shares held Directors,
shares as shown under related warrants, conversion by related officers and
Titles of Issue authorized balance sheet caption and other rights parties employees Others
Redeemable Shares - -

100,000,000 1,000,000 7
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PHILAM MANAGED INCOME FUND

{&n Opan-End ireeatmant Company]
1.1 STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

[N armownals in Mauzards of Phitpaing Besa)

ABSETS

Gash & Cash Egunaienls

Financal Asseds at Fair Value through Pl or Loes
Odher financal sasets at smotized coal

Other Azsels

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

fccounts Paysble ard Accrued Expenses
Deposis Far Fulure Subscriplions

TOTAL LIABILITIES
MET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHDLDERS
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNMITHOLOERS

Ghawe Capital

Share Pramium

DFFS

Resarva Tor luchsation on aveilabie-for-saie finenoal ascels
Redained Earnings

EQLITY ATTRISUTABLE TO UMITHOLDERS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EGUITY

FUOH | WP DVESTRENT MO AT EOTT, TN
Az Farrd BMarager of Ml 38anaged Incomes Fund Inc

Sttt

Tgrire M. Dedos Sanins
Chiel Optration s CHTkeer, RIME

NOTES

L e

(e B ]

Unzudited a5 at  Auwdied as at Incroase/Docreass
30-Jun-2021 M-Dac-2030 30 Jun 2021 v 31 Dec 2020
183, a1 231,716 (47875 -20h0%
B 4T E00A30 o a0 1E 4%
TR 18& (180) -5 50%
k] fiitd {7l -0 Ba%
_ pesoss 1,033,583 11,518 4 58%
36,858 43,235 (2Bl -14.52%
50,028 56,929 i [0 %
8,887 W w0 6o
sesziz ___woate ___stwe sam
1423 1,000 473 4230
111 642 53,202 a5, 444 S8 Bd%h
757 633 [T =k
2 = : 06000
117 512 118,879 1,533 1674
_EIEE—' 330418 L X
1,005,058 1,033 5&3 1,516 4,385




PHILAM MANAGED INCOME FUND

(&n Opan-End Investmant Company}
1.2 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(AT merounds i Mousands of Fiwippine Paso)

For the Period Ended Far the Guarter Ended
H-Jun-2021 A0-uJum- 200 I0-Jun-20:21 J0-dun-2020
INVESTMENT INCOMENLOSSE) NOTES {PHE) [FHP} [PHE}  Lalalad]
Imtarasi T 12,778 22,332 B.315 10873
Realired GainsLossaa] - Fwasiments | 13.033) 3 480 [ ¥, 054 1. 757
Unrealized Gaine Lesses) - Immstmanis k| {2,204} 15,188 5853 27457
Total nvestmant income!|Loss) 6,342 40, 568 9,155 40,127
OPERATING EXPENSES
Management fies ] 1,354 1402 &g a7
Fees and Other Charges B B4 B4 451 418
Taxes and Licanses fees By G408 4 i
Oiilwer Exprenises Fa T 20 3
Total Operating Expenses 2353 2,942 1,154 1,130
INVESTMEMNT INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 4 474 Ja.088 B0 38 397
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 2 57 § B3 1283 2 008
NET INVESTMENT INCOME 1,932 33,783 8717 36,885
Mumbser of shares outstanding 701 B4, 188 TAT TET 817 781, B4d8, 188 TAT TBT BT
Earnings par shar (PHF) PHP 0.0024 PHP 0.0452 PHP 00085 PHP 0.0498




PHILAM MAMAGED INCORE FLIND
An Jpen-Engd Investment

1.5 STATEMENTS OF CHAMGES M MET ARSETS
ATTIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS
1Al amaunts i1 Mousancs of Shiipome Peo)

LI el i Unaudfed
Fuar ihe Pariod Emndad For i Paricd Endiad
B0 i30T J0=Jun-2020
{PHP) [PHP|
FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
et Investmant Income 1,832 33,783
Criher Campesbsnaive Incame i 5
TRANSACTION WITH LRITHOLDERS
Proceeds from msuanos ol unils 227 104 201 054
Paymant for mdamgson of unks (17 ) [
Adjsiment 1o Relared Eamings - Adaption of IFR3 § - .
LS AN - s
Hal incroaase (decreasa) from tronsactions with wunithalders 55 86l 44, a0
HET INCREASE IN HET ASEETS 7. Tel T8 75
E&EE EI' EI:EHHIHI] OF E'"FF o0 418 883,306
T ASSETS ATTRBUTABLE 10 UNTHOLDSHS AT BND CF VEAS w0 ST




PHILAM MANAGED INCOME FUND

(An Open-End Investment Company)

1.4 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(AN amaounds in thousands of Philippine Pesa)

Unaudited as at Unaudited as at
30-Jun-2021 20-Jun-2020

GASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Incomeiboss) before income tax 4,478 38,028
Less:Unrealized Gains/{Losses) - Investmenis 2,804 (15,186)
Interest Income {12.778) (22,332
Operating incomel{loss) before working capital changes (5,395) 508
Changes in operating assels and Habiilies:
(Increase Mdacreass it asseals!

Financial Azsets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss {104, 875) (42.568)

irvazimen! Sacuriies &l armoilieed oo - -

Chiher fimancial assels al amorized cost 22 (26}

Avallabie-for-Sale Irvesiments .

Loans and Recaivables = -

Haid fo Matiriy investmenls

Hald To Coffect Investmants - -

Ciher Assels T 382
Increaszeddecrease) in labilities:

Accounis payabie and soorued expenses (B, 280) 33,575
Depazits For Future Subscnpdions o (0]
Net cash provided by (used in) operations (116,525) (3.150)
Imterest raceived 15233 23,364
e Laxes padd {2,547) (4,263
Net cash from (used In) operating activities [103,838) 15,851
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Procesds from issuance of units 227 108 401,084
Paymants for units redesrmed {171,244) (356,094}
Adjustmant o Ratained Eamings - Adoption of IFRS 8 - -
Audit Adjustment - -
Net cash from {used in) Financing Activities 55,864 44,990
MET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH (47.975) 60,941

EQUNVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 231,716 147,727
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END 183,741 208,668




L AN MAKAGED INCOME FUND
ATTACHMENT TO FINAKTIAL STATEMENTS

TOTAL ASSETS-January £ 1o June 30, 2021 1,05 099
MET ASSET VALUE-January 1 b June 30, 021 e AL
FERCENTAGE
MARKET TOMET ASSET  PERCENTAGE TO
SECURITY MAME VALLE VALUE TOTAL ASSETS  NO, OF SHARES
FIRANCIAL ASSETE AT FAIR VALLE THROUGH PRDRT CR LOBE
BOaNGS:
AYALA CORP ACFRSONC2024 3.026% CUE ON 20MA1 2004 waan 0w aTo% 40,000
CHINARAMK CHBFXSCHNI4 3 5% DUE ON 18 FEB 2024 0,048 100% 461% 50200
CHIE 10-22 CHEFRBONE 2 TH% DU ON 220072 4 So7% 4574 0,000
DEP £ 5% DUE 11DECET 50282 40e% 48 s0.£00
ENERGY DEVT CORP EDCFRNDNZA 285855 J8ILMI0M 25053 1549 13 m000
2 S873% DUE 1TONINE PH_LBP1T1 122 0064 1 BE% C % 1000
Metropolian Bark&Trst 6.3% 11APRZNEZ 52318 526 482% #0000
B ACBAFXEO20ZE 3 25% DUE 27002002 50,887 6557 a5E% 50.000
B SECS SECEFNBO2022 3.125% DUE ON 24JULI0:2 191,887 W2 37 106,000
S BEERD0as 305 QUE 1CMARTS L E 1% 0
B SMPHOZ2025 4 8643% DUE ON Z5MAR2028 R 266 242% 25000
B SMPH 2 4555% DUE 05403023 25,178 268 2330 25000
AL BONDE 52
GLYERMMENT SECURITIES:
GE RE-11 PHYSITIFZPRS 4 S25% DUE OM (4DEC2022 109 and 10 48% LEL w0060
GO R31Y PHYSSTIHIASD 2.372% DUE COMARZOIS 150,290 1521 128y Ve 000
BB 513 PIDI2SH1H0 2625 12AUG205 L 15348 1360 150,000
TOTAL GOVERKNEENT SECURITIES &34 505
TOTAL FIMANGIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALLIE THROUGH
[prOFITLOSS i
INVESTMENT I SEMI LIQUIDY LIGUID INVESTMENTS
CASH AND CASH BOUIVALENTE 183,741 1855 6 G na
GOVERNMENT SECURITES A4 808 Ao a7 26 e
[T

| s BORROWINOE FOR THE PERIOD




TOTAL OEERATING EXFEMSES

AVERAGE DIILY NET ASSET VALUE - Januiry 1 1o e 30, 1051 imaziE
FERCEWTAGE
TV HET ASSET
KRATURE OF EXPEMSES ANOUNT WALLE
Kanagem=m fees 1354 13%
Pt madl O Chaiges LET Goas
Taras ord Licaraay ar [l
i scmiEnmous o Lo




FHLAN MANASEED INOOME FURD
ATTACHMENT TO FIRARCIAL BTATEMENTS

TOTAL ASSETS. Janunsy 1 f6 Jufie 30, H05 1,044,533
MET ARSET VALUE-Junuary 1 %a Juna 30, 1 61,062
PERCENTAGE
MARKET T NET ABSET PERCENTAGE TO
SECURITY WAME VELLIE WALUNE TOTAL ASSETS HII. OF SHARES
FINANCIAL ASEETS AT FAR VALLIE THRCUGH PROFIT OR LOSGS:
BONDE:
CH ALl 5255 DUE 26APRIN aand i B 035 3,500
£ CHib 01-31 CHEFXBOE T 5 7% DUE ON 100202 18,982 1 BB 17 17 800
DB E0T20E] PHP Mot 3 Hnd DUE ZRJULI050 101 553 10.45% 2H1% 160,000
G Mdudnepal des Bankd Trust 635 11APRINZZ kAL 5 40% S214 Eif=a i
CH SBTC COPPARCEAN & AT JFLINAR1 b0, 2%5 106% LEEL 1000
SiF BFIEDEE £ 054 OUE 10MARZS 145614 182% TR 15,000
B BP0 4 AW LR ON F5Ma R 35443 2 BEw 281% 25.000
B NI BANE OF THE PR S T.061% DUE §YDECISD 1,186 Lk L1 1.7
AL BONDE 18,182
SOANERKNMENT BECURMES
FUETH 1E2 PHYRETIFM208 S B75% CUE ' EDEC30E0 35 584 2.7 3515 35,000
FATH 10564 FHYESTIFRCSE 6.576% CUE 18U&NZ2 51,558 201% 8530% 0,000
FREN 702 PHYET2EDNZ 15% GUE 14uARSIT 12,168 1288 120 10,000
FMTH Hk23 6 76 PHYGITEHCZTS DLE 0N 2EIAH XS T8z TAI% To¥L 50,000
FXTH 475 FHYBSTIHEDE] 4 T5% DILE Ok 02 1LLER 106 4593 10T 12 B 100 Qg
FXTH 20-B PHYRETIFIAAE 01 128% OLE 180ECaS 3 D 0A4ts = 2.7
FAF PHYEITIHEALS 4 8T5% DUE DN 13IUNZOZT 61204 A33% 2.8%% A0 060
B Pei-v | Petval 2R O0ED 4GS (UE DN DADEC 2R BE 280 T Al 5T BEHNO
[GFH 21 UST 182808 .98 4. 3% DUE TRAMTY Tram a6aW TEN 7,000
|TOTAL 3OV ERMMENT SECURITIES B3 ¥l
LINIT INVIESTMIENT TRUST FLIND
BA| MONEY WARKET FLIND 4,04 [=F e [iElic ] e
LIITF BF SHOAT TERK FLND w002 BT HATR AN
TOTAL LT INVESTHENT TRUST FUKD 8,190
TOTAL FRIANCUAL ASSET AT FAIR WALLIE THROUGH
|PROFTLOES LK el
TRENT ™ SEM| LIGURD LEJUND INVESTMENTS
AN CARH ECAVALENTS 203 654 21 6E% 20ATH nts
ENT SECUEITIES AR, 301 Pl AT AN s




EAEBES
MO BoRROWIHGS FOR THE FERIOD
TOTAL DPERATMG FIPENSES
AVIRAGE DAY NET ASSET VALUE - January 110 Juna 3, 330 1007052
PERCENTAZE
TO MET ASSET
MATURE OF EXPENBES AmWOUNT WALLE
Eigragemenm iran 140 0.94%
Feas and Cther Cranpés BBL Dos%
Teozs ard Licenses B 0O6%
i calarecus T OO0

a4



PHILAM MANAGED INCOME FUND
Finencial SEtament Ratics

Jmnuzary 1 to June 30 021

sanuary 1 o December 31. 20320

Current Asset
Current Liabdilies

Curent fLiquidiy Fati

Tetal Lisbilities
Total Equity
Dobi-in-Equity Ratio

Tobal Assebs
Totsl Equity

Anset-to-Equity Ralo

Earnirgs Belees Income Tax

[mimrest Expanse

Imterest Rate Coverags Rano

Mt income

Tatal Equity
Ristiam on Equity

January 1 o Jurse 3, 2028

1,085,098 1,033,583 1,014,823
56 887 103,167 16,938
1.20 10.02 56.68

o6 84T 103,167 16,558
988,312 930,416 o2 0862
0.0580 0.1108 0.0177
1,085,059 1,033,583 1.014,623
S48 212 s30.416 962,062
1.0580 11108 1.0546
4478 58,364 38,026

na Lk -] n.a

1582 51,327 33,783
588 242 530.418 962,052
0.0az0 0.0552 D.0351




Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc.
(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the period of June 30, 2021 and 2020
(In the notes, all amounts are shown in thousand Philippine Peso, unless otherwise stated)

1 General information

Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc. (the “Fund”) is an open-end mutual fund company engaged in the
sale of its shares of stock, the proceeds of which are invested in fixed income investments. It was
registered on February 27, 2006 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under the
Investment Company Act of 1960 or Republic Act 2629 and The Revised Securities Act or Batas
Pambansa Blg. 178. As an open-end mutual fund company, its outstanding shares are redeemable
anytime at the holder’s option based on the net asset value (NAV) per share at the time of redemption.

The Fund is registered as an issuer of securities with the SEC under Section 12 of the Securities
Regulation Code (SRC). The Fund’s track record of securities registration is shown in Note 6.

The Fund’s registered office address, which is also its principal place of business, is located at
17F Philam Life Head Office, Net Lima Building, 5th Avenue corner 26th St., Bonifacio Global City,
Taguig 1634, Philippines.

The Fund has no employees.

Effective January 29, 2020, PAMI assigned all its rights, interests, and obligations as fund manager,
advisor, distributor, and transfer agent of the Fund to BPI Investment Management, Inc (BIMI), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI). Henceforth, the management,
distribution and transfer agency functions are performed by BIMI over the Fund. Services, contracts and
agreements are in force with BIMI.

Coronavirus pandemic

The pandemic which broke out in March 2020 forced governments all over the world, including the
Philippines, to implement community lockdowns and quarantines to mitigate the spread of the virus.
Unfortunately, these lockdowns caused the demands for goods and services to plummet which
ultimately led to the contraction of both global and domestic economies.

In response to the growing number of COVID-19 cases in the country, Republic Act (RA) No. 11469,
otherwise known as “Bayanihan to Heal as One Act” (or simply the “Bayanihan Act”) was enacted in
March 2020 which granted the President of the Republic of the Philippines additional powers to combat
the pandemic and aid certain vulnerable sectors of the economy.

The pandemic remains the topmost concern of the government and businesses alike. The Philippine
economy is gradually opening with the imposition of less stringent community quarantine protocols.
Likewise, the vaccination program of the government is expected to commence in 2021 which is hoped
to slow down the spread of the virus and boost confidence among businesses and consumers.

Overall, the COVID-19 pandemic did not have significant impact on the Fund’s business operations,
financial position, and cash flows as of June 30, 2021 and for the year ended December 31, 2020,
including its ability to continue on as a going concern in the next 12 months after reporting date. While
the pandemic still poses some risk and uncertainties, the Fund, however, remains confident on its ability
to absorb some conceivable financial shocks that may arise due to volatile economic conditions.



2 Cash and cash equivalents

The account as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 consists of:

June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020

Cash in banks 35,741 53,510
Short term deposits 148,000 178,206
183,741 231,716

Cash in banks earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates.

Cash and cash equivalents as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 are all classified as current.
3 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The account as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 consists of:

June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020

Government securities 404,505 343,403
Corporate bonds 495,942 399,578
Mutual Fund and Unit investment trust funds - 57,858

900,447 800,839

Financial assets at FVTPL are considered held for trading and classified as current assets.

The composition of income (losses) from financial assets at FVTPL, net for the June 30, 2021 and
2020 are as follows:

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Interest income on financial assets at 12,190 19,308
FVTPL
Other changes on financial assets at FVTPL
Net realized fair value gains (losses) (3,033) 3,450
Net unrealized fair value gains (losses) (2,904) 15,186
6,253 37,944

4 Other financial assets at amortized cost

The account at June 30, 2021 consist of accrued interest from term deposits amounting to P78
(December 31, 2020 — P188).

Other financial assets at amortized cost as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 are all classified
as current.

5 Accounts payable and accrued expenses

The account as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 consists of:

June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020

Accounts payable 36,258 42,671
Accrued expenses 700 567
36,958 43,238

Accounts payable include withholding taxes, documentary stamp tax payable, other payables and
payable to investors due to redemptions that have been contracted for but not yet settled as at
reporting date.

Accrued expenses mainly represent accruals for transfer charges, legal fees, marketing and
administration fees.



As at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Fund’s accounts payable and accrued expenses are

all current.
6 Net assets attributable to shareholders

The account as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 consists of:

June 30, 2021

December 31, 2020

Share capital — P0.01 par value
Authorized - 100,000,000 shares

Issued and outstanding 1,423 1,000
Share premium 111,642 56,202
Deposit for future subscriptions 757,635 757,635
Retained earnings 117,512 115,579

988,212 930,416

The movements in the number of issued and outstanding shares (in absolute number of shares)

follow:

June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
Issued and outstanding, beginning 100,000,000 100,000,000
Issuances of shares 378,246,108 378,246,108
Redemptions of shares (378,246,108) (378,246,108)
Issued and outstanding, ending 100,000,000 100,000,000

As at June 30, 2021, the Fund has 580 shareholders (2020 - 593 shareholders).

The Fund computes its NAV per share by dividing the net assets attributable to shareholders,
including deposits for future subscriptions classified as liability, if any, as at reporting date by the
number of issued and outstanding shares during the year, including shares for issuances covered by
deposits for future subscriptions (DFFS). The total equity as shown in the statement of financial
position represents the Fund’s NAV based on Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS NAV).

Issue or offer price is equivalent to the NAV per share at the time of issuance.

The Fund computes its NAV per share by dividing the net assets attributable to shareholders,
including deposits for future subscriptions classified as liability, if any, as at reporting date by the
number of issued and outstanding shares during the year, including shares for issuances covered by
deposits for future subscriptions (DFFS). The total equity as shown in the statement of financial
position represents the Fund’s NAV based on Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS NAV).

Issue or offer price is equivalent to the NAV per share at the time of issuance.

A reconciliation of the Fund’s Trading NAV to PFRS NAYV is provided below:

June 30, 2021

December 31, 2020

Trading NAV 1,048,141 990,345
DFFS (59,929) (59,929)
PFRS NAV 988,212 930,416

NAYV per share at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 is computed as follows:

June 30, 2021

December 31, 2020

Trading NAV 1,048,141 990,345
Number of shares outstanding (in thousands) 791,846 749,548
NAV per share 1.3237 1.3213




As disclosed in Note 1, the Fund is an open-end investment company which stands ready at any time
to redeem its outstanding shares at a value defined under its prospectus. Any changes in the value of
the shareholders’ investment are reflected in the increase or decrease in the Fund’s NAV.

The Fund’s retained earnings may exceed 100% of its paid-up capital from time to time. This,
however, is not construed as a compelling factor for the Fund to declare dividends considering the
nature of the Fund’s business. Such retained earnings may be used for reinvestment and will be
converted into realized profits by the shareholders upon redemption of their shareholdings in the
Fund.

Earnings (loss) per share for the years ended at June 30, 2021 and 2020 are computed as follows:

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020

Net income (loss) 1,932 33,763
Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding during the year (in thousands) 791,846 747,788

Earnings (Loss) per share 0.0024 0.0452

In compliance with the SRC, the Fund is required to file registration statement for each instance of increase in
authorized shares. The table below shows the Fund’s track record of registration of securities under the SRC (in
absolute amounts).

SEC approval date Number of shares Par value
February 27, 2006 100,000,000 P0.01
” Interest income

The Fund’s interest income for the ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 are derived from:

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020

Cash and cash equivalents 588 3,024
Financial assets at FVTPL 12,190 19,308
12,778 22,332

8 Fees and other charges

The details of the account for June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020 are as follows:

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020

Transfer Agent Fees 271 255
Legal & Audit fees 228 228
Administration fees 149 140
Directors' fees 76 76
Postage & Mailing 44 44
Custodian fees 38 47
Marketing fees 39 39
Documentary Stamp Tax 18 28
Bank charges 21 27
Provision for Probable Loss - -
884 884

Professional fees pertain to amounts paid to third party service providers.

Registry and transfer charges pertain to the fees paid to the transfer agent for the record keeping of
individual shareholdings and the issuance and cancellation of stock certificates.

Directors’ fees pertain to per diem of the directors of the Fund.
Administration fees are the amounts paid to the Fund’s accountant for services rendered which

include, among others, the preparation and maintenance of books of accounts and computation of
NAV.



Fees to custodian bank pertain to amounts paid to the custodian bank for the safekeeping of the
securities, arranging settlement of any purchases and sales and collecting information on and income
from such assets.

9 Management Fees

Effective January 29, 2020, PAMI assigned all its rights, interests, and obligations as fund manager,
advisor, distributor, and transfer agent of the Fund to BPI Investment Management, Inc. (BIMI), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI). Henceforth, the management, distribution and
transfer agency functions are performed by BIMI over the Fund. Services, contracts and agreements are
in force with BIMI.

The table below summarizes the Fund's transactions and balances with PAMI and BIMI.

Transactions Outstanding balance
(Charges to (Due to fund
profit or loss) manager)
Management Fees - Management fee is
June 30, 2021 1,354 189 computed as one-forty eighth
June 30, 2020 1,402 172 (1/48) of one percent (1%) of
the average NAV of the Fund
per year determined on a
daily basis
- Outstanding balance is
unguaranteed, unsecured
and non-interest bearing;
settled in cash at gross
amount within the following
month
Registry and transfer fees - Registry and transfer fee is
June 30, 2021 271 44 computed as one-twentieth
June 30, 2020 255 40 (1/20) of one percent (1%) of
the NAV per year determined
on a daily basis
- Outstanding balance is
unguaranteed, unsecured
and non-interest bearing;
settled in cash at gross
amount within the following
month

Outstanding balance’s
terms and conditions

Management and transfer fees payable will be settled the next month.

Management and transfer fees payable and other liabilities are considered current as at
June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

10 Fund accounting services

On July 1, 2008, the Fund and Deutsche Bank entered into a fund accounting agreement wherein
Deutsche Bank shall perform administrative functions, which include, among others, the preparation
and maintenance of books of accounts and computation of NAV. As compensation for services
rendered, Deutsche Bank shall be entitled to an administration fee equivalent to 0.0275% per annum
based on the NAV of the Fund.



Administration fees for the year ended June 30, 2021 amount to P149 (June 30, 2021 — P 140) and is
included under Fees and other charges in the statement of total comprehensive income. As at

June 30, 2021, administration fees payable to Deutsche Bank included in accounts payable and
accrued expenses amount to P50 (December 31, 2020 — P70).

11 Critical accounting estimate and judgments

Estimates, assumptions and judgments used in preparing the financial statements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The accounting estimate and
judgments that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

11.1  Critical accounting judgments
Classification of financial assets

The Fund follows the guidance of PFRS g starting January 1, 2018 in classifying financial assets at
initial recognition whether it will be subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, at amortized cost, or at fair value through profit or loss. The Fund determines
the classification based on the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets and on the
business model it uses to manage these financial assets. The Fund determines whether the contractual
cash flows associated with the financial asset are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI). If
the instrument fails the SPPI test, it will be measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Recognition of deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax asset from NOLCO has not been recognized because the Fund believes that there
is limited capacity to generate sufficient taxable profit against which benefit from NOLCO can be
utilized. The Fund assesses the unrecognized deferred income tax assets and will recognize a
previously unrecognized deferred income tax asset to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable income will allow the deferred income tax assets to be recovered.

11.2  Critical accounting estimate
Estimation of expected credit loss for financial assets

The measurement of the expected credit loss (ECL) for the Fund's investment securities at amortized
cost is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future
economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g. impact of unemployment rates on the credit risk of a
counterparty and the likelihood of counterparties defaulting).

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting requirements for
measuring ECL, such as:

e Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

e Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL;

e Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each portfolio
and the associated ECL; and

e Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL

12  Capital and financial risk management

12.1 Governance framework

The primary objective of the Fund’s financial risk management framework is to protect the Fund from
events that hinder the sustainable achievement of the Fund’s performance objectives, including failing to

exploit opportunities. The Fund recognizes the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk
management systems in place.



The BOD has approved the Fund’s risk management policies and meets regularly to approve on any
commercial, regulatory and own organizational requirements in such policies. The policies define the
Fund’s identification of risk and its interpretation, limit structure to ensure the appropriate quality and
diversification of assets, alignment of investment strategy to the corporate goals and specific reporting
requirements.

12.2 Capital management

The Fund’s objectives for managing capital are: (a) to invest the capital in investments meeting the
description and risk exposure indicated in its prospectus; (b) to achieve consistent returns while
safeguarding capital; and (c) to maintain sufficient liquidity to meet the expenses of the Fund and to meet
redemption requests as they arise.

As provided by the Investment Company Act of 1960, the minimum required capitalization for funds
amounts to P50 million. The Fund’s capitalization is more than the requirement of the SEC.

The Fund considers the net assets attributable to shareholders as its capital (or total equity as shown
in the statement of financial position). As at June 30, 2021, the net assets attributable to unitholders
amount to P988,212 (December 31, 2020 — P930,416).

12.3 Regulatory framework

The operations of the Fund are also subject to the regulatory requirements of the SEC. Such regulations
not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities but also impose certain restrictive provisions.
Unless ordered otherwise by the SEC, the Fund shall not sell securities short or invest in any of the
following;:

margin purchase of securities (investments in partially paid shares are excluded);
commodity future contracts;

precious metals;

unlimited liability investments;

short selling of currencies;

short selling of investments; and

other investments as the SEC shall, from time to time, prescribe.
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Any changes in the Fund’s investment objective should be with notice and prior approval of the SEC. An
investment company shall not change its investment objective without the approval from the majority of
the Fund’s shareholders.

In addition, the SEC also provides maximum limits on exposure to counterparties, maintenance of a
certain level of liquid assets and conditions for incurring borrowings.

The Fund is fully compliant with the above regulatory requirements as at June 30, 2021 and 2020.
12.4 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Fund ranks its financial instruments based on the hierarchy of valuation techniques required by
PFRSs, which is determined based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable
or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources;
unobservable inputs reflect the Fund’s market assumptions. These two types of inputs lead to the
following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This level
includes listed equity securities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).



Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs). This level includes equity investments and debt instruments with significant
unobservable components.

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. The Fund considers
relevant and observable market prices in its valuations where possible.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its
entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair
value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require
significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement.
Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
judgement, considering factors specific to the asset.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgement by the Fund. The
Fund considers observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed
or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are
actively involved in the relevant market.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from the exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based
on quoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable
inputs are classified within Level 2.

Financial instruments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade
infrequently.

The fair values of investments in fixed-income securities and unit investment trust funds under
financial assets at FVTPL and government securities under AFS financial assets are all classified
under Level 2.

Any changes in the Fund’s investment objective should be with notice and prior approval of the SEC.
An investment company shall not change its investment objective without the approval from the
majority of the Fund’s shareholders.

In addition, the SEC also provides maximum limits on exposure to counterparties, maintenance of a
certain level of liquid assets and conditions for incurring borrowings.

The Fund has no financial assets that fall under the Level 1 and 3 categories. There are no other assets
or liabilities that are subsequently measured at fair value or that would require disclosure of fair value
hierarchy.

12.5 Financial risk

The Fund may invest in SEC-registered debt papers or other certificate of indebtedness/obligations,
issuers of whom had been determined as financially sound and approved by the Investment
Committee of the fund manager. The Fund does not plan to invest in foreign securities. However, SEC
allows mutual fund companies to invest up to one hundred percent (100%) of its net assets in foreign
securities subject to safety nets and standards set by the SEC.

The Fund is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets. The most important components are
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. These risks arise from open positions in interest rate
securities, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements.



Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

The Fund manages the level of credit risk it accepts through setting up of exposure limits by each
counterparty or group of counterparties. Effective July 2013, the maximum investment of the Fund in
any single enterprise shall not exceed an amount equivalent to fifteen percent (15%) of the Fund’s
NAYV except obligations of the Philippine government or its instrumentalities, provided that in no case
shall the total investment of the Fund exceed ten percent (10%) of the outstanding securities of any
one investee company. The Fund also transacts only with institutions with high credit rating or
standing.

In addition, the Fund manages the level of credit risk it accepts through reporting of credit risk
exposures, monitoring compliance with credit risk policy and review of credit risk policy for
pertinence and changing environment. The Fund cannot lend to individual borrowers.

The fund manager’s high-grade credit process combines top down and bottom up elements reflecting
the observation that the weaker the credit quality, the more security specific risk comes to dominate
overall portfolio risk. The bottom up element focuses on the analysis of individual credits. The top
down element focuses on the analysis of sectors. In order to manage risk, the high-grade portfolios
combine diversification rules with a number of filters designed to help avoid downgrade and default
candidates.

As at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, all of the Fund’s financial assets are classified as stage 1
(performing) accounts. There are no financial assets classified under stages 2 (underperforming) and
stage 3 (impaired).

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with universal banks to minimize credit risk exposure. The
other financial assets consisting of investment in fixed income securities and receivables are
considered by the Fund as having investment grade credit quality, wherein the counterparties are
assessed to possess strong to very strong capacities to meet their obligations; thus, credit risk is
assessed to be very low.

As at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, there are no past due or impaired financial assets.
There are no collaterals held as security and other credit enhancements attached to the loans and
receivables.

Beginning January 1, 2018, the Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability
of default, exposure at default and loss given default. Management considers both historical analysis
and forward looking information in determining any expected credit loss. Management considers the
probability of default to be close to zero as the counterparties have a strong capacity to meet their
contractual obligation in the near term. Loss allowance has been recognized based on 12-month
expected credit losses.

Expected credit loss (ECL) measurement

PFRS 9 outlines a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial
recognition as summarized below:

¢ A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is classified in ‘Stage 1" and
has its credit risk continuously monitored by the Fund.

e If asignificant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to ‘Stage 2’ but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired. Please refer to the
discussion below on SICR for a description of how the Fund determines when a significant increase
in credit risk has occurred.

e Ifthe financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to ‘Stage 3’.

¢ Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion of
lifetime ECL that result from default events possible within the next 12 months. Instruments in
Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on ECL on a lifetime basis.



e A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with PFRS 9 is that it should consider forward-
looking information.

e Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial assets that are credit-
impaired on initial recognition. Their ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis (Stage 3).

SICR

The Fund has aligned its SICR criteria with the presumption indicated within PFRS o9; that is, the credit
risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due. Also, the Fund considers investment downgrade of two notches as an
indicator of SICR.

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Fund defines a financial instrument as in default, which is fully aligned with the definition of credit-
impaired, when it meets one or more of the following criteria:

Qualitative criteria

The counterparty meets unlikeliness to pay criteria, which indicates the counterparty is in significant
financial difficulty. These are instances where:

e The counterparty is in long-term forbearance;

e The counterparty is dissolved;

e The counterparty is insolvent;

e The counterparty is in breach of financial covenant(s);

e An active market for that financial asset has disappeared because of financial difficulties;

e Concessions have been made by the creditor relating to the counterparty’s financial difficulty;

e It is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter bankruptcy; or

e TFinancial assets are purchased or originated at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit
losses.

Quantitative criteria

The Fund has applied the presumption indicated within PFRS 9 pertaining to the default definition; that
is, default of a financial instrument does not occur later than when a financial asset is more than 9o days
past due.

The criterion above has been applied to all financial instruments held by the Fund and are consistent
with the definition of default used for internal credit risk management purposes. The default definition
has been applied consistently to model the Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD), and
Loss Given Default (LGD) throughout the Fund’s expected credit loss calculation.

An instrument is considered to no longer be in default (i.e. to have been cured) when it no longer meets
any of the default criteria for a consecutive period of six months.

Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month (12M) or a lifetime basis depending on whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to be
credit-impaired. The ECL is the discounted product of the PD, EAD, and LGD, defined as follows:

e The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as per
“Definition of default and credit-impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (12M PD), or over
the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

e EAD is based on the amounts the Fund expects to be owed at the time of default, over the next 12
months (12M EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime EAD).

e LGD represents the Fund’s expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. It is expressed
as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of default.
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The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, EAD, and LGD for each future year and for each individual
exposure or collective segment. These three components are multiplied together, and then discounted
back to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the original
effective interest rate or an approximation thereof.

Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL model

The calculation of ECL incorporates forward-looking information. The Fund has performed historical
analysis and identified the key economic variables affecting credit risk and ECL for each portfolio (i.e.
unemployment rate). This economic variable and its associated impact on the likelihood of default vary
by financial instrument. Expert judgment has also been applied in this process. Forecasts of this
economic variable are based on the economic data from the Philippine Statistics Authority (PSA). The
impact of this economic variable on the ECL model has been determined by performing statistical
regression analysis to understand the impact that changes in this variable have had historically on the
counterparty’s default rates.

As with any economic forecast, the projections used within the ECL calculation are subject to a high
degree of inherent uncertainty and therefore the actual outcomes may be significantly different to those
projected. The Fund considers this in its credit risk management and would continue to govern these
processes closely.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from either the
inability to sell financial assets quickly at their fair values; or counterparty failing on repayment of a
contractual obligation; or inability to generate cash inflows as anticipated.

The Fund is exposed to daily cash redemptions of its issued shares. It therefore invests the majority of
its assets in investments that are traded in an active market and can be readily disposed of.

The Fund manages liquidity through specifying minimum proportion of funds to meet emergency
calls. Unless otherwise prescribed by the SEC, at least ten percent (10%) of the Fund shall be invested
in liquid/semi-liquid assets such as:

a. Treasury notes or bills, certificates of indebtedness issued by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
which are short term, and other government securities or bonds and such other evidence of
indebtedness or obligations, the servicing and repayment of which are fully guaranteed by the
Republic of the Philippines;

b. Tradable Long-Term Negotiable Certificate of Time Deposits (LTNCDs);

c. Government debt securities where the issuer or the guarantor is a foreign government, sovereign
or central bank with an international long-term issuer rating of investment grade;

d. Savings or time deposits with government-owned banks or commercial banks, provided that in no
case shall any such savings or time deposits accounts be accepted or allowed under a “bearer,”
“numbered” account or other similar arrangement;

e. Money market instruments issued by Philippine regulated qualified buyers or those issued by an
investment grade issuing body; and,

f. Other collective schemes wholly invested in liquid/semi-liquid assets.

The Fund may not incur any further debt or borrowings unless at the time of its occurrence or
immediately thereafter, there is an asset coverage of at least 300% for all its borrowings. In the event
that such asset coverage shall fall below 300%, the Fund shall, within three days thereafter, reduce the
amount of borrowings to an extent that the asset coverage of such borrowings shall be at least 300%.
The Fund has not breached the said asset coverage requirement as at June 30, 2021 and

December 31, 2020.

In addition, the Fund manages liquidity through reporting of liquidity risk exposures, monitoring

compliance with liquidity risk policy and review of liquidity risk policy for pertinence and changing
environment.
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk of change in fair value of financial instruments from fluctuation in foreign
exchange rates (currency risk), interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices (price risk),
whether such change in price is caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or
factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

The Fund structures levels of market risk it accepts through a market risk policy that determines what
constitutes market risk for the Fund; basis used to fair value financial assets and liabilities; sets out
the net exposure limits by each counterparty or group of counterparties and industry segments;
reporting of market risk exposures; monitoring compliance with market risk policy and review of
market risk policy for pertinence and changing environment.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Fund holds no investment in and does not plan to invest in foreign securities. However, SEC
allows mutual fund companies to invest up to 100% of its net assets in foreign securities subject to
safety nets and standards set by the SEC. Since the transactions of the Fund are carried out in its
functional currency, accordingly; it is not exposed to currency risk.

Fair value interest rate risk

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value/future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Fund’s market risk policy requires it to manage the maturities of interest bearing financial assets
and financial liabilities.

As at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Fund determines the reasonably possible change in
interest rates using the percentage changes in weighted average yield rates of outstanding securities
for the past three years.

13 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

13.1  Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Accounting
Standards (PAS) 34 — Interim Financial Reporting. The condensed interim financial statements should
be read in conjunction with the annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020,
which have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs). The
term PFRSs in general includes all applicable PFRSs, Philippine Accounting Standards (PASs) and
interpretations of the Philippine Interpretations Committee (PIC), Standing Interpretations Committee
(SIC) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which have been
approved by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) and adopted by the SEC.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL and AFS financial assets.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Fund’s accounting policies. The area involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements.
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Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a) New standards, amendments to existing standards and interpretations adopted by the Fund
There are no new standards, amendments to existing standards or interpretations that are effective for
annual periods beginning on January 1, 2021 that have a material effect on the financial statements of
the Fund.

(b) New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to existing standards and interpretations are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022, and have not been early adopted in preparing
these financial statements. None of these are expected to have a material effect on the financial
statements of the Fund.

13.2 Financial instruments

Classification and subsequent measurement

From January 1, 2018, the Fund has applied PFRS 9 and classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

. at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),
. at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), and
. at amortized cost.

The classification requirements for equity and debt instruments are described below:
Equity investments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective;
that is, instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual
interest in the issuer’s net assets.

The Fund subsequently measures all equity investments at FVTPL, except where the Fund’s
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are
recognized in other comprehensive income and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, even
on disposal. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value. Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continue to
be recognized in profit or loss as Dividend income when the Fund’s right to receive payments is
established. Gains and losses on equity investments at FVTPL or loss are included in the Fair value
gains (losses), net on financial assets at FVTPL in the statements of total comprehensive income.

Debt instruments
Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the
issuer’s perspective, such as loans, government and corporate bonds and trade receivables purchased

from clients in factoring arrangements without recourse.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on the Fund’s business
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
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Based on these factors, the Fund classifies its debt instruments into one of the following measurement
categories:

e  Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI), and that are not designated at fair
value through profit or loss, are measured at amortized cost. The carrying amount of these assets
is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance recognized and measured. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in ‘Interest income’ using the effective interest rate method.

Amortized cost financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, investment in fixed income
instruments and other receivables as at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

e Financial assets at FVOCI

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not
designated at FVTPL, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses
on the instrument’s amortized cost which are recognized in the statement of total comprehensive
income. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

As at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Fund has no financial assets under the FVOCI
category.

e Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI and the collection of
contractual cash flows is only incidental to achieving the Fund’s business model objective are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on debt securities that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized
in profit or loss and presented in the statement of total comprehensive income under Fair value
gains (losses), net on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the period in which it
arises. Financial assets at FVTPL consists of investments in government securities and unit
investment trust funds as at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

Business model: The business model reflects how the Fund manages the financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. That is, whether the Fund’s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows
from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of
financial assets. If neither of these is applicable, then the financial assets are classified as part of
‘other’ business model and measured at FVTPL. Factors considered by the Fund in determining the
business model for a group of financial assets include past experience on how the cash flows for these
assets were collected, how the asset’s performance is evaluated and reported to key management
personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are compensated.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect
contractual cash flows and sell, the Fund assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest (the SPPI test). In making this assessment, the
Fund considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement
i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual
terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement,
the related financial asset is classified and measured at FVTPL.
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The Fund reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes. The reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following
the change. Such changes are expected to be very infrequent and none occurred during the period. At
January 1, 2019, the Fund reclassifies its debt investments from amortized cost to FVTPL
measurement category, in accordance with its change in business model.

Impairment

The Fund assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL associated with its debt instrument assets
carried at amortized cost. The Fund recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date.
The measurement of ECL reflects:

e Anunbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes;

e The time value of money; and

e Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The ECL assessment is applied on financial assets at amortized cost such as cash and cash equivalents,
investment securities at amortized cost and other assets.

Credit impaired financial assets (Investments - Stage 3)

Financial assets are assessed for credit impairment at each balance sheet date and more frequently
when circumstances warrant further assessment. Evidence of credit-impairment may include
indications that the debtor is experiencing significant financial difficulty, probability of bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization, as well as measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
evidenced by the adverse changes in the payments status of the debtor or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults. An asset that is in Stage 3 will move back to Stage 2 when, as at reporting date,
it is no longer considered to be credit-impaired. The asset will transfer back to Stage 1 when its credit
risk at the reporting date is no longer considered to have increased significantly from initial
recognition, and when there is sufficient evidence to support full collection of principal and interest
due. Prior to the transfer to Stage 1, the asset should have exhibited both the quantitative and
qualitative indicators of probable collection.

When a financial asset has been identified as credit-impaired, expected credit losses are measured as
the difference between the asset’s gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the instrument’s original effective interest rate. For impaired financial assets
with drawn and unwithdrawn components, expected credit losses also reflect any credit losses related
to the portion of the loan commitment that is expected to be drawn down over the remaining life of
the instrument.

When a financial asset is credit impaired, interest ceases to be recognized on the regular accrual basis,
which accrues income based on gross carrying amount of the asset. Rather, interest income is
calculated by applying the original effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the asset, which is
the gross carrying amount less related allowance for impairment. Following impairment, interest
income is recognized on the unwinding of the discount from the initial recognition of impairment.

As at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, there are no credit-impaired financial assets.
Impairment of other financial assets

The Fund the applies the simplified approach as permitted by PFRS 9 in measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for other financial assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, other financial assets have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of receivables over a period of 36 months before December 31, 2018 or January 1, 2018
respectively and corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors are considered insignificant in calculating impairment
of other financial assets.

15



The Fund’s other financial assets primarily composed of cash and cash equivalents, other financial
assets at amortized cost and other assets are not impaired as at June 30, 2021 and
December 31, 2020.

Accounting policies applied until December 31, 2017 (PAS 39)

The Fund has applied PFRS 9 retrospectively but has not elected to restate comparative information.
As a result, the comparative period provided continues to be accounted for in accordance with the
Fund’s previous accounting policy.

Classification and subsequent measurement

The Fund classifies its financial assets in the following categories: (a) financial assets at FVTPL,

(b) held-to-maturity, (c) loans and receivables and (d) AFS financial assets. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired or incurred and whether they are
quoted in an active market. Management determines the classification of the Fund’s financial
instruments at initial recognition. The Fund does not hold any financial assets under category (b)
during and as at June 30, 2021.

Financial assets at FVTPL

This category consists of financial assets that are held for trading or designated by management as at
FVTPL on initial recognition. Derivative instruments, except those covered by hedge accounting
relationships (none as at reporting date), are classified under this category.

Financial assets classified in this category are designated by management on initial recognition when
the following criteria are met:

e The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different
basis; or

e The assets are part of a group of financial assets which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy; or

e The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative does
not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analysis, that it would not be
separately recorded.

Financial assets at FVTPL are recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value, with
changes in fair value recorded in profit or loss, included under Fair value gains (losses). Interest
earned is recorded in Interest income, while dividend income on equity instruments is recorded in
profit or loss under Dividend income when the right to receive of the payment has been established.
Gains or losses realized from the sale of financial assets at FVTPL are recorded in Fair value gains
(losses) in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and
are not classified as financial assets held for trading, designated as AFS or FVTPL. This accounting
policy applies to cash and cash equivalents, loans and receivables and accrued income.

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment, if any. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The amortization is included in Interest income in profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment of such loans and receivables are recognized in Provision for impairment
losses in profit or loss.
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AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other categories.

AFS financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value. Changes in the fair value of monetary and
non-monetary securities classified as AFS are recognized directly in other comprehensive income,
until the financial asset is derecognized or impaired at which time the cumulative fair value
adjustments previously recognized in other comprehensive income should be recognized in profit or
loss. However, interest is calculated on these securities using the effective interest method and
foreign currency gains and losses on monetary assets classified as AFS are recognized in profit or loss.
Dividends on equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss when the Fund’s right to receive
payment is established.

Impairment of financial assets

The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is an
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

(a) Loans and receivables

For loans and receivables which are carried at amortized cost, the Fund first assesses whether an objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Fund determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics such as type
of borrower, collateral type, past-due status and term, and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment for impairment.

The criteria that the Fund uses to determine if there is an objective evidence of impairment loss include:

Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower;

Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and
Deterioration in the value of collateral.

If there is an objective evidence that impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of loss is charged to profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of estimated
impairment loss decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in profit or loss, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized
cost had the impairment not been recognized at the reversal date.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. Time value is generally not considered when the effect of discounting is not material. If an
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instrument has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate, adjusted for the original credit risk premium. The calculation of the present value of
the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result
from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of such
credit risk characteristics as type of debtor, past-due status and term.

(b) AFS financial assets

The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is an objective evidence that a security classified
as AFS is impaired. For debt securities, the Fund uses the same criteria being used for those financial
assets at amortized cost.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the camulative loss - measured as difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognized in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognized in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of security below its cost is
also an evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists the cumulative loss -
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss - is removed from equity
and recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized on equity instruments are not reversed
through profit or loss but are made directly to other comprehensive income.

Policies applied for all periods presented

Date of recognition

Financial assets are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Fund becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are
recognized on trade date.

Initial recognition of financial assets

Financial assets not carried at FVTPL are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs.
Financial assets carried at FVTPL are initially recognized at fair value, and transaction costs are
recognized as expense in profit or loss.

Day 1 profit

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Fund recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1” profit) in profit or loss unless it qualifies for
recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where variables are made of data which are not
observable, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit
or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each
transaction, the Fund determines the appropriate method of recognizing the Day 1 profit amount.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
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Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The Fund classifies its financial liabilities at FVTPL or as other financial liabilities at amortized cost.
The Fund does not hold any financial liabilities at FVTPL during and as at December 31, 2017.

Other financial liabilities at amortized cost

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated as financial liabilities at
FVTPL are classified as other financial liabilities, where the substance of the contractual arrangement
results in the Fund having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder,
or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Fund’s own equity shares.

Financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value
plus transaction costs.

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

This accounting policy applies to Accounts payable and accrued expenses (excluding taxes payable)
and Due to fund manager.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognized where:

The right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;
e The Fund retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or
o The Fund has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

Where the Fund has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Fund’s continuing involvement in the asset.

Financial liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation is discharged, or is cancelled or has expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity or the
counterparty.
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As at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, there are no financial assets and liabilities that have been
offset.

Other assets

Other assets are recognized in the event that payments have been made in advance of obtaining right
of access to good or receipt of services and measured at nominal amounts. These are derecognized
from the statement of financial position upon delivery of goods or services, through amortization over
a period of time, and use of consumption.

Other assets are included in current assets, except when the related goods or services are expected to
be received or rendered more than twelve (12) months after the reporting period, which are then
classified as non-current assets.

Share capital

The Fund issues shares, which are redeemable at the holder’s option and are classified as equity in
accordance with PAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation. Each share has the following features
which support the equity classification:

e It entitles the holder to a pro rata share of the Fund’s net assets in the event of the entity's
liquidation;

e The share has no priority over other claims to the assets of the entity on liquidation, and it does
not need to be converted into another instrument before it is classified as such; and

e All shares impose a contractual obligation on the Fund to deliver a pro rata share of its net assets
on liquidation.

In addition, the Fund has no other financial instrument or contract that has:

e total cash flows based substantially on profit or loss, the change in the recognized net assets or the
change in the fair value of the recognized and unrecognized net assets of the Fund (excluding any
effects of such instrument or contract); and

o the effect of substantially restricting or fixing the residual return to the shareholders.

Should the redeemable shares’ terms or conditions change such that they do not comply with the strict
criteria as mentioned above, the redeemable shares would be reclassified to a financial liability from
the date the instrument ceases to meet the criteria. The financial liability would be measured at the
instrument’s fair value at the date of reclassification. Any difference between the carrying value of the
equity instrument and fair value of the liability on the date of reclassification would be recognized in
equity.

Redeemable shares can be put back to the Fund at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of
the Fund’s trading NAV calculated in accordance with the Fund’s regulations. Redeemed shares are
not cancelled but may be reissued in the future.

Share premium

Sales of shares are recorded by crediting Share capital at par value and Share premium for the amount
received in excess of the par value; redemptions are recorded by debiting those accounts. In the event
that the Share premium balance is exhausted as a result of redemptions, the Retained earnings
account is reduced by redemptions in excess of par.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings represent the accumulated surplus of the Fund as at reporting date.
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Deposits for future subscription

Deposits for future subscriptions represent funds received by the Fund with a view to applying the
same as payment for a future additional issuance of shares either from its authorized but unissued
shares, from a proposed increase in authorized share capital, or as share premium. Upon application
with the SEC, the amount will be credited to equity while upon the SEC’s approval, the amount is
transferred to Share capital for the par value of the shares and Share premium for the amount in
excess of the par value.

Based on SEC Bulletin No. 6, issued in January 2013, the Fund shall classify deposit for future share
subscription as equity if and only if, all of the following are present at the end of the reporting period:

(a) The unissued authorized share capital is insufficient to cover the amount of shares indicated in the
contract;

(b) There is BOD’s approval on the proposed increase in authorized share capital (for which a deposit
was received);

(c) There is stockholders’ approval of said proposed increase; and

(d) The application for the approval of the proposed increase has been filed with the SEC.

If the criteria above are not met, the deposits for share subscriptions will be presented as liabilities in
the statement of financial position.

Revenue recognition
Dividend income

Dividend income on equity instrument is recognized when the Fund’s right to receive payment is
established.

Interest income

Interest income is presented gross of final tax and recognized on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the Fund reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flows discounted at original effective interest rate
of the instrument, and accretes the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired financial
asset carried at amortized cost is recognized using the original effective interest rate.

Other income

Other income is recognized when earned and when the Fund’s right to receive payment is established.
Expenses

Expenses are recognized in the year in which they are incurred.

NAYV per share

NAV per share is computed by dividing the net assets attributable to shareholders, including deposits
for future subscriptions classified as liability, as at reporting date by the number of issued and
outstanding shares during the year including shares for issuances covered by deposits for future
subscriptions.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to shareholders of the Fund by
the weighted average number of shares outstanding and shares covered by deposits for future
subscriptions during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed in the same manner as basic earnings per share, however,

profit attributable to shareholders and the weighted average number of shares are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential shares.
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As at June 30, 2021 and 2020, there are no potential dilutive shares.
Taxation

The Fund is domiciled in the Philippines. Under the existing tax laws of the Philippines, a
documentary stamp tax, included under Taxes and licenses in profit or loss, is payable by the Fund on
original issue and subsequent sale or transfer of its redeemable shares.

The Fund’s dividend income earned and received from another domestic corporation is not subject to
tax, under the existing Tax Code.

The Fund has interest income from bank deposits and government securities which are subject to final
withholding tax. Such income is presented at gross amount and the related final tax is presented as
part of income tax expense in profit or loss.

Current and deferred income tax

Income tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal authorities relating
to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid at the end of reporting period.
They are calculated using the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognized as a component of income tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method on temporary differences at the end of
the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes. Under the liability method, with certain exceptions, deferred income tax
liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred income tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax losses (net
operating loss carry over or NOLCO) and unused tax credits (excess of minimum corporate income tax
or MCIT) to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deferred income tax asset can be utilized.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized in full for all taxable temporary differences, except to the
extent that the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax asset is reviewed at each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax asset to be utilized. The Fund reassesses at each reporting date the need to
recognize a previously unrecognized deferred income tax asset.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled provided such tax rates have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

Related party relationships and transactions

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly, or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercises significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Such relationship also exists between and/or among entities
which are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or between, and/or among the reporting
enterprise and its key management personnel, directors, or its shareholders. In considering each possible
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related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely the
legal form.

Related parties include: i) key management personnel, including directors; ii) entities that have the
ability to control or exercise significant influence over the Fund in making financial or operational
decisions; and iii) entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by parties
described in i) and ii).

Foreign currency transactions and translation
Functional and presentation currency

Subscriptions and redemptions of the Fund’s redeemable shares are denominated in Philippine Peso.
The performance of the Fund is measured and reported to the investors in Philippine Peso. The BOD
considers the Philippine Peso as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of
the

underlying transactions, events and conditions. The financial statements are presented in Philippine
Peso, which is the Fund’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Philippine Peso using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss.

Events after the reporting date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Fund’s financial position at reporting

date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial.
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